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Group Financial Highlights

BB BB Financial data 2006 2007 2008

(X FETIT) (expressed in HK$'000)

e Turnover 156,199 178,755 184,206

EH (&) Gross profit (loss) 12,079 (10,374) 7,815

ARRIERFTAA Loss for the year attributable

JEE R FEEE to equity holders of the Company 64,562 573,901 499,626
fEE@eE Total borrowings 265,667 583,005 761,690
ARRERFTAA Equity attributable to equity holders

JE1h HE = of the Company 90,274 1,567,858 1,198,829
WENE  BERRE Acquisition of property,

plant and equipment 9,787 3,086 67,586

BIRA Staff costs 28,956 26,809 33,114

BRADAERZFEA Net asset attributable to equity

FEREE holders of the Company

CE) (Miat1) per share (HK$) (note 1) 0.089 0433 0.331

B i b = Financial ratios

mE X (Kit2) Current ratio (note 2) 1.78 332 1.78

RE LK (f7E3) Quick ratio (note 3) 1.38 3.19 1.59

BELEX (Kita) Gearing ratio (note 4) 294% 37% 64%

B st Note:

1. 8REAT /NS FEREET [, Net asset attributable Equity attributable Number of issued shares
BafAEA = BE&RFAEA - ROE toequity holdersof = toequity holders ~ +  at year end
EHFEER LR the Company of the Company

per share

2. RBLE = RHEE - RYPEBE 2 Curentraio = Currentassets +  Current liabilties

3. RBLE = (RPEE-FE) - RDERE 3 Quckratio = (Current assefs - Inventories)  +  Current liabiities

4. BEKE = RBERE - ALQAER 4 Cearingratio =  Totalborrowings  +  Fquity attributable

BEARGES to equity holders
of the Company

4 | China Energine International (Holdings) Limited $EfXSREER (£EH) HRAS
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Directors’ Business Review

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Ltd. (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 3|
December 2008 is summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2008, the Group's turnover for the year 2008
amounted to HK$184.21 million with a loss of HK$495.93 million in
contrast to those for the year 2007 of HK$178.76 million with a loss of
HK$572.03 million respectively. The turnover for the year comprised that
related to telecommunications of HK$97.26 million, sales of wind energy
related products of HK$47.77 million, sales of rare-earth permanent
magnetic motor products of HK$35.18 million and sales of electricity of
HK$3.99 million whereas that of 2007 wholly related to
telecommunications, reflecting the Group’s diversification of businesses.
The loss for the year was primarily attributable to total impairment loss
of HK$424.17 million on interests in jointly controlled entities mainly
comprising the goodwill of HK$385.18 million included in the interest in
Nantong CASC Wanyuan Acciona Wind Turbine Manufacture Corp. Ltd.
("Nantong Acciona”), and interests on loans regarding finances on wind
energy projects of HK$34.07 million, allowances related to
telecommunications business totaling HK$42.02 million comprising that
for due from associates of HK$17.84 million, obsolete inventories of
HK$12.74 million and doubtful debts of HK$ | |.44 million albeit shares of
profits from businesses of automotive component parts amounting to
HK$47.12 million and of wind energy projects amounting to HK$34.38
million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Restructuring of the Group

The Company changed its name to China Energine International
(Holdings) Ltd. from CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Ltd. on 15 May
2008, marking the milestone in stepping into a new era with
diversification of business to businesses in respect of wind energy, new
material application, automotive component parts and
telecommunications. The new name with the word “Energine” therein
signifies energy plus engine and energized engine with the close
association with aerospace science and technology. In this connection, the
Company published its new logo on the announcement thereon,
conveying a new brand image blending windmill, energy, cooperation and

from engine to new energy with attribute of environment conservation.

F 3} Annual Report 2008
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Directors’ Business Review
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In this direction, Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd. (“BEI"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, acquired an additional 20% registered
capital in Jiangsu Aerospace Wanyuan REPM Motor Co. Ltd. (formerly
Hangzhou Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Application Co. Ltd.),
turning the company into a subsidiary of 49% shareholding such that the
company's business of development of prominent effective energy-saving
rare-earth permanent magnetic motor project, which is not only an
energy-saving project but also a new material application project, became
one of the main businesses of the Group from July 2008. Further, BEI
acquired an additional 15% registered capital in Aerospace Long Yuan
(Benxi) Wind Power Co. Ltd., turning the company into a subsidiary of
55% shareholding such that the company’s business of production and
sales of electricity became another main business of the Group from
December 2008. For details of the acquisitions, please refer to the
Company's circulars of Il June 2008 and 14 November 2008
respectively.

RAERFRE)RNEEFERLAREES
Wind Power Field of Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power Co. Ltd.

Business of Wind Energy Project

Further development on wind energy projects

In grasping the precious opportunity arising from the state policy
propositioning on development of wind energy projects in China and
leveraging the bright prospect of tremendous demand of energy whose
production is hence required to be renewable and of environment
conservation in the course of continuing economic growth of China in
creating long-term income streams, the Group has set up an Inner
Mongolia windmill general assembling plant company, an Inner Mongolia
blade plant company, and a distribution company and is to set up an
after-sales service company in development of direct-drive windmill

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited HEfXEHFEEE (£H) HRAF
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Directors’ Business Review

project of advanced energy intensively, which comprises parts of
manufacture of windmill equipment, research and development of
technology, SOMW testing wind field and windmill distribution with
strategic investors including Emergya Wind Technologies B.V. ("EWT”)
from Netherlands, Beijing Direct Energy Corp. ("BDE") and Aerospace
Research Institute of Materials & Processing Technology (“Aerospace
Materials”).

EWT is a Netherlands’ company incorporated in February 2004 that is
the second largest direct-drive windmill manufacturer possessing the
comprehensive and advanced direct-drive techniques as to capacities of
750KW and 900KW on production of windmill and its main components
such as turbine generators and windmill blades. BDE is engaged in
business of distribution of wind measuring equipment and instruments,
possessing the capacity of development of early phase of wind energy
generation field and of market of distribution of windmills. Aerospace
Materials which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT, hence a fellow
subsidiary of the Group, is the leading research centre engaging research
on aerospace material application and processing as well as fibers, fabric
and composite material, with possession of material and art testing
workshop and research centre of national class level.

Inner Mongolia Windmill General Assembly Plant

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Directwind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd.
("IM Turbine Manufacture”) is a joint venture between BEl and EWT with
shareholding of 95% and 5% respectively, engaged in the manufacture and
delivery of the wind turbine generators as to 750-1,000KW and 2MW,
blade and other components thereof in the PRC under the joint venture
agreement of 29 May 2008. It was planned that the capacity of the annual
production of the plant with area of about 50 hectares in one of the
richest wind resources territories, Xinghe County, Wulanchabu City, Inner
Mongolia will reach 400 sets of 900KW direct-wind windmill turbines and

ARLEBRRE — K

Inner Mongolia Windmill General Assembly Plant — Assembling

AERLRBRKE — B
Inner Mongolia Windmill General Assembly Plant — Workshop

F 3} Annual Report 2008
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Directors’ Business Review
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200 sets of 2 MW direct-drive windmill turbines. The registered capital
and total investment of this company amount to RMB50 million and
RMB100 million respectively. The Group's share of capital contribution
amounts to RMB47.5 million. The subsidiary was established in
September 2008. Thereafter, it proceeded the pre-production work in
preparation for the commencement of production and sales in 2009.

Inner Mongolia Windmill Blade Plant

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. ("IM
Composite Material”) is a joint venture between the Group (BEl's 35%
and New Image Development Ltd/'s 20%), Aerospace Material and EWT
with shareholding of 55%, 40%, and 5% respectively, engaged in the
businesses of production of tailored-made blades for IM Turbine
Manufacture and other windmill manufacturers and of undergoing
research and developments and quality recognition of blades with the
technology research and development center under the joint venture
agreement of | December 2008. It was planned that the capacity of the
annual production of the plant with area of about 180 hectares to be
established in one of the richest wind resources territories (adjacent to
windmill general assembly plant), in Xinghe County, Wulanchabu City,

Inner Mongolia by the company will reach 400 sets of 900KW direct-
drive windmill blades and 250 sets of 2MW direct-drive windmill blades.
The registered capital and total investment of this company amount to
RMB8O million and RMB100 million respectively. The Group's share of
capital contribution amounts to RMB44 million.

w
NREEBERR — =H
Inner Mongolia Windmill Blade Plant — Workshop

8 | China Energine International (Holdings) Limited HEMXEFER (£E) FRAT



ARLTEEEXREMREAT
AEEZEMBRARAAREMARERINER
HEARAALEARLAAEEXRME
B CRARBEARLGAEEXRRBER
BREMERBZBE RRAERRE A
AERRARATEMRRYEERRY

NELREEXEZR

B 4l o 2
RAHERLEEREEFEE I E750E
1,00FRERR HESHERZLTHHE
BRI AR BEER
MREPBEAL L EERE -

B &
ErAMmAEERERRKBEERRARRE —
MeEgbEBERR  AAAR - EWTRH
BERDRIEB25%  60% K% 15%ME - 7
BAREHFRERBERLENBRRME
BEZRNEEROMSHERBEES I
BHAERRERSEARMIBHRAOERER
%o AnzaMERAREBEREARAA
R#1,0008 Ttk AR 1,4008 T c KA
TEMBEAARB08T - SHE RTINS
ZZNFNARY  EBEBRZ=ZTZN
FHEIEMBRHAZER

EEEXGOEA

Directors’ Business Review

Inner Mongolia Windmill Property Park Development Company
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd., the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, engaged in development of Inner
Mongolia windmill property park, has commenced the construction
works of plants, offices, warehouses of direct-drive windmill composite
material plant and direct-drive windmill turbine plant regarding the said
park in relation to rendering of the property management service to IM

Turbine Manufacture and IM Composite Material.

= . e ]
.

R s

+

Full view of Inner Mongolia Windmill Property Park

Research and development of technology

Wind energy research and development center is to handle the technical
issues on local mass production of direct-drive windmills as to 750 to
[,000KW and core parts such as techniques on windmill general
assembling, blade and generator as well as issues on local production in
China.

Sales of windmills

Beijing EWT-CASC Direct Wind Marketing and Sales Co. Ltd. is a joint
venture associate between the Company and EWT and BDE with their
respective shareholding of 25%, 60% and [5%, engaged in business of
market exploitation and distribution of windmills produced from windmill
general assembling subsidiary domestically and globally and coordination
of sales support services to be provided by direct wind service company.
The registered capital and total investment as to this company amount to
RMBI0 million and RMBI14 million respectively. The Company’s share of
capital contribution amounts to RMB2.5 million. The associate was
established in August 2008 and started its business thereafter in
preparation of sales made in 2009.

F 3} Annual Report 2008
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Directors’ Business Review
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#EH  Windmill part — generator

Nantong Acciona

Nantong Acciona (established in June 2005 between BEIl, Acciona
Energina Internacional S.A. ("Acciona”) and International Commercial E.
Industria with their respective shareholding of 45%, 45% and 10%)
commenced its production of |.5MW wind turbine from June 2006. In
2008, it manufactured and delivered 68 wind turbines, contributing share
of profit before amortisation of intangible asset of HK$1.79 million.

The Group acquired 100% interest in BElI which held 45% equity of
Nantong Acciona on |6 October 2007, in which time the global wind
turbine market was in the phase of demand well exceeding supply such
that the sale orders made to Nantong Acciona were plentiful in such
peak season of production with very promising future. In light of this, the
attributable value of HK$448.10 million relating to Nantong Acciona out
of the final consideration value of HK$2.044 billion (where the 2.2 billion
consideration shares were valued at market price of HK$0.87 each at the
acquisition date in applying HKFRS 3 Business Combinations) was arrived
at based on their then estimated future cash flows as opposed to the
claimed attributable value of HK$44.93 million incorporated in the
original HK$900 million consideration (where the consideration share
was agreed at HK$0.35) at the time of entering into the acquisition in
February 2007. This gave rise of variance of fair value attributable to
Nantong Acciona amounting to HK$403.17 million in terms of goodwill.

Yet from mid 2008, mass production of domestic wind turbines of MW
class in meeting the market demand began, changing the scenario of
demand exceeding supply. Despite the quality of certain domestic wind
turbines yet to be stable, they started to be the mainstream wind
turbines thanks to their low selling prices. Due to the demanding
technical conditions of the main components of the Nantong Acciona’s

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited HEfMXERER (£EH) FRAF
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Directors’ Business Review

wind turbines, the process of localization of their production was sluggish
and the main components were still required to be imported from
Europe, leading to the high cost and persistent high price as opposed to
those of domestic wind turbines, resulting in reduction of
competitiveness albeit of assured high quality.

The three joint venture parties underwent several discussions on
handling the issues of accelerating the speed of localisation of supply of
components and procuring sales by lowering selling price, but with no
solutions thereof derived. Currently, the three joint venture parties are
continuing discussions. The Group has consideration of selling of its equity
in effort to reduce loss.

M@TMAEEER  Production workshop of Nantong Acciona

Wind Field Operations

Jilin Longyuan

Jilin Longyuan had sold electricity generated of 320 million kwh from 235
windmills installed with the total capacity of 200.6 MW in Tongyu County,
giving the share of profit amounting to HK$13.27 million. There were
additions of 59 windmills installed during the year, bringing the capacity to
200.6 MW from its original 100.3 MW.

Jiangsu Longyuan

Following further investment of RMB30.43 million to Jiangsu Longyuan for
development of Phase Il of the project with capacity 50 MW, the project
company installed 100 I.5MW windmills with capacity of 150 MW in
total, becoming the first and biggest windmill field of megawatt level in
PRC known as Yudong wind power field with 3 sub-fields, namely,

F 3} Annual Report 2008
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Directors’ Business Review
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Huangang wind power field, Dongling wind power field and Lingyang wind
power field. By selling 342 million kwh through that capacity, the company
had achieved revenue of HK$187.36 million, contributing the share of
profit of HK$17.26 million.

Liaoning Benxi

Liaoning Benxi had a capacity 24.65 MW wind power field and achieved
sales of electricity of 53 million kwh, contributing share of profits of
HK$3.85 million for the eleven months to November 2008. This company
became our Group's subsidiary from | December 2008, making the first
move in turning wind power generation as one of our main businesses,
bringing the first HK$3.99 million revenue and HK$4.49 million profit in
December 2008 to the Group.

50MW testing wind field

The testing wind field part of Wind Energy Project will comprise an
associate to be engaged in generation of electricity from 55 windmills of
900KW being installed in a windmill electricity generation field of total
capacity of 49.5MW in Xinghe County, Inner Mongolia in provision of
electricity to the public at large at more than |10 million kwh per annum
in northern China. Currently, all of the approvals issued by state
authorities were obtained; and the strategic investors are being sought.

Business of New Materials

Jiangsu REPM (formerly Hangzhou REPM) became the Group’s subsidiary
on | July 2008 when the Group took effective control thereon in wake of
entering into an equity assignment contract with Shanghai STEP Electric

)

o -Iﬁ‘* _‘_HM*

Rare-earth permanent magnetic motor research centre
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Directors’ Business Review

Co. Ltd. ("Shanghai Electric”) on 27 May 2008 whereby BEIl acquired a
20% registered capital of Jiangsu REPM from Shanghai Electric at
consideration of RMB10.5 million so as to take effective control of the
board of Jiangsu REPM through its new shareholding of 49%. During the
year, the company achieved revenue of HK$46.01 million and made a
profit of HK$0.91 million ie successful in turning this company to profit
making from loss incurring since taking up of the operation of the
subsidiary in Liyang County, Jiangsu.

Business of Automotive Component Parts

The jointly controlled entities, Beijing Delphi and Wanyuan Henniges
(formerly Wanyuan GDX) performed well as expected, contributing
share of profits before amortisation of intangible asset amounting to
HK$64.40 million in total. In tackling the automotive petrol price rise and
high-emission car acquisition tax and the decrease in automotive
manufacturing leading to sales decrease, Beijing Delphi further reinforces
its capacity of design and of engineering research and development so as
to maintain its market competitiveness and its cost control in maintaining
profitability in maintaining the sales levels to its customers including
Shanghai GM, and Brilliance. Wanyuan Henniges has always been
positioning as the leading distinguished supplier supplying sealing systems
to key customers of medium to high end sedan market such as FAW-VW,
Shanghai VW and Shanghai GM with leading edge of engineering
techniques, realizing various tailored-made sealing systems to them in
facing the said issues of automotive industry.

Telecommunication Business

The Group continued the sales of communication equipment of high
capacity to price value and those rendering the application services of
global positioning system to our customers with good after-sales service.
Having said that, the telecommunication business under the
circumstances of financial tsunami is facing keen competition in the
market, reducing the competitive edge gradually, leading to making
various allowances.
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PROSPECTS

The global financial tsunami as triggered by the sub-prime loan crisis in
U.S. has brought the Group lower pace of growth in light of decrease in
the overall demands decrease, price rise of raw materials, rise of labour
wages and appreciation of RMB, reducing the profitability of enterprises
in general. Nevertheless, the group’s diversification strategy does render
the Group a cornerstone in standing against such wave. As such, the
Group is to speed up the process of development of the wind energy
projects as well as energy-saving and new material project in terms of
rare-earth magnetic motor application in the year 2009.

Other developments
In the meantime, the Group is also exploring other opportunities in the
diversified businesses for our Group's further development thereon.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had 43 employees (2007: 43
employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 417 employees (2007: 362
employees) in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is
determined according to individual employee’s performance and the
prevailing trends in different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The
Group also provides Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to
its employees. In addition, discretionary performance bonus is available at
the discretion of the Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 3| December 2008 were
HK$761,690,000 (2007: HK$583,005,000), which were fixed rate
borrowings. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market
interest rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for
hedging or other purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 3|
December 2008 was 64% (2007: 37%).
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Directors’ Business Review

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2008, certain assets of the Group of HK$95,010,000
(2007: HK$1,400,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.

Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi.
The Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation
was not significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging
activities.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2008.

APPRECIATION

I 'would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year
under review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, professor, aged 44, obtained Bachelor's degree in
Computer Science and Master's degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively.
He is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC").
He served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director
Assistant and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation
Control of China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT")
between 1988 and 1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in
1997, Director of Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General
Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation in 1999, President
Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since 2002, he has served as vice president of
CALT, possessing rich experiences in strategic research and business
administration. He was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice-
chairman of the Company on |4 February 2006 and became the
Chairman on 26 October 2007.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 41, is the Executive Director and General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor's degree in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia.
During 1989 to 1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft
System Engineering under the China Academy of Space Technology, the
Comprehensive Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of
China and then the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as
Assistant Engineer, Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the
President cum Deputy Director of the President Office. In 1999, he,
possessing extensive experience in research and management, was
appointed the Executive Director cum Deputy General Manager of China
Aerospace International Holdings Limited. He has been appointed as
Executive Director of the Company since May 1999.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wu Jiang, aged 48, professor, Council Member of China Association
of Chief Accountants and Deputy President of Institute of China
Aerospace Industrial Accountancy. He graduated from National
University of Defense Technology with Master degree in system
engineering. He worked for a destroyer contingent of the North Sea
Battleship Fleet during August 1983 to July 1989. From August 1989 to
August 2000, he was the Chief of Integrated Planning Division of CALT,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. From September 2000 to
January 2002, he acted as the General Deputy Director of the First
Division, CALT. He then became the Chief of Finance Department of
CALT for 5 years. He has been the Chief Financial Officer of CALT since
February 2007. He has been a director of Astrotech Group Limited
("Astrotech”), the controlling shareholder since July 2005. Astrotech is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. He is an expert on scientific and
technological management and financial management with rich
experience in finance, investment and risk management. He was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 20 May
2008.

Mr. Tang Guohong, professor, aged 48, graduated from Beijing
University of Aeronautics & Astronautics (“Beihang University”) with
Master's degree in Engineering. He went to Germany in 1987 and
obtained PhD from Max-Planck Institute for Metals Research. He has
served as Director of Staff Office, Deputy Dean and Professor in the
Material Science and Engineering Department of Beihang University,
Deputy General Manager and Administrative Deputy General Manager
with China Aerospace Industry Supply & Marketing Corporation. After
acting as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT, he
now is the President Assistant of CALT with rich experiences in scientific
research, business administration and capital operation. He has been a
director of Astrotech since July 2005. He was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 4 February 2006.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 46, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin
University with Master's degree in Industrial Automation. He had been
the Designer with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996,
Division Chief of Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing
Long March Hi-tech Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as
Deputy General Manager, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry
Corporation successively from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience
in scientific research, product development and business administration.
He was appointed as an Executive Director and a Deputy General
Manager of the Company on 14 February 2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr.
Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and was redesignated as Non-
executive Director on | April 2009 following his appointment as the
Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wang Dechen, aged 69, was graduated with Bachelor degree from
Harbin Institute of Military Technology (formerly Chinese People’s
Liberation Army Military Engineering Institute), committee member of the
[0th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress. He served as the
Assistant Director, Director, Deputy Dean, Vice President, Deputy
Secretary to the Party Committee of Nanjing Eastern China Engineering
College between 1966 and 1985. He acted as Secretary of Education of
the Ministry of China Weapon Industry Ministry’s National Mechanical
Committee in 1985. He served as Deputy General Manager of China
North Industries Group in 1988 to 1990 and of China Weapon Industry
Corp. in 1990 to 1996. He served as General Manager and Secretary to
the Party Secretary of China South Industries Group Corp. from July
1999. From December 2003 onwards, he acted as the Senior Consultant
thereof. From July 2004, he was an Independent Director of Aisino Co.,
Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. With rich
experience in strategic management and corporate restructuring, Mr.
Wang is the senior expert in Chinese advanced equipment manufacturing
industry and automotive industry. Also, Mr. Wang is an active advocate
and experienced expert in China environmental protection and clean
energy field. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 23 January 2008.
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 54, is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the
CPA Australia and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is also a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. She has over |5 years of experience in
corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity and debt
markets. She held various senior positions in international and local banks
and financial institutions and is currently a controlling shareholder and the
managing director of each of Asia Investment Management Limited and
Asia Investment Research Limited, both companies are licensed
corporations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").
Ms. Kan is a licensed investment adviser under the SFO and a registered
officer of Lotus Asset Management Ltd. Ms. Kan is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of each of Regal Hotels International Holdings
Limited , G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited, Sunway International
Holdings Limited, Shimao Property Holdings Limited, Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited and Shougang Concord
Technology Holdings Limited, all of which are companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. She was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 23 January 2008.

Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 44, obtained his Bachelor's degree in
Microbiology and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual
Property from University of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in
England and Wales in 1993 and Hong Kong in 1994. He has been a
partner of an international law firm advising clients on corporate law and
corporate finance law since 2006. Prior to that, he had been a partner of
Sidley Austin Brown & Wood, Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna,
Hong Kong. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 23 January 2008.

Mr. Yiu Ying Wai, aged 56, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company on 30 September 2004. He held a Bachelor's degree in
Architectural Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He was a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
member of Certified Management Accountants of Canada and also a
practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in Hong Kong. Mr.Yiu is currently a Partner of W.T. Wong
and Company. He has over 20 vyears of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management in Hong Kong and overseas. He resigned from
Independent Non-executive Director, Audit Committee’s Chairman on 23
January 2008.
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Mr. Wong Fai, Philip, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 30 September 2004. Mr. Wong
has over 20 years' experience in the IT industry. He was highly involved in
many social activities of IT industry in Hong Kong and the PRC as well as
public service to the business community. He was awarded the Hong
Kong Ten Outstanding Young Person, and was the founder of Hong Kong
IT Charity Fund and the Council Member of Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. At present, he is the Director of ValenceTech Ltd., the Advisor
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University and the Advisory Member of China
National Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation under Pacific
Economic Cooperation Council. He resigned from Independent Non-
executive Director on 23 January 2008.

Mr. Zhu Shixiong, aged 67, is the current Vice Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association Limited. He graduated from
the Shanghai Municipal University of Science and Technology with a
Bachelor’s degree in Chemistry. He previously held the posts of Deputy
Director of the Shanghai Municipal Chemical Industrial Bureau, Executive
Director and Vice-President of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings)
Company Limited and Chairman of the Tien Chu Ve-Tsin Chemical
Industries (H.K.) Ltd. He has over 20 vyears of experience in chemical
production and technology as well as enterprise management. He had
been a Director of the Company since May 1997 and was an
Independent Non-executive Director from May 2001. He resigned
therefrom on 23 January 2008.

Mr. Moh Kwen Yung, aged 70, graduated with a university Bachelor's
degree in Civil Engineering in 1958 and worked as a Design Engineer
with Fujian Hydroelectric Design Centre with participating in designing
dams, tunnels, harbours and hydroelectric power stations from 1958 to
1962, From 1962 to 1971, he worked as a Site Agent for Paul Y.
Construction Co. Ltd. in Hong Kong. In 1971, he established his own
construction company, Success Construction Co,, as a sole proprietor and
ran the company until 1982.In 1982, he entered into a joint venture with
Japan Development to form Chevalier Construction Company Ltd. in
Hong Kong, where he worked as a Director and General Manager until
he emigrated to Canada at the end of 1989. In 1993, he returned to
Hong Kong. He had been a Director of the Company since May 1997
and was an Independent Non-executive Director from May 2001. He
resigned therefrom 23 January 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zang Wei, senior engineer; aged 39, obtained his Bachelor's degree
in Engineering at the Wireless Engineering Faculty and his Master's degree
in Telecommunication and Electronic Engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology. He also obtained PhD in Economics from Remin's University
of China. Since he joined the China Aerospace Industry Department in
1992, he has assumed the Deputy Director with the International
Cooperation Division of China Academy of Space Technology, the Deputy
Director with Assets Management Department, Trading and Investment
Department of CASC, the Director and Managing Director of China
Spacesat Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange as A share
company), the Director and Senior Vice President of China Spacesat
Technology Co,, Ltd (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange as A share
company) successively. He was appointed as a Deputy General Manager
of the Company on 16 March 2007.

Mr. Li You, senior engineer, aged 44, senior engineer. Graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology with the Bachelor's
degree in Electronic Material and Component Specialized Technology, he
has studied courses in economics, banking, finance and business
management of engineering management research class in Beijing
Institute of Technology. Since 1986, he successively served in Beijing
Telemetering Technical Research Institute, CALT's Political Division,
Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development Department as Deputy
Director; Comprehensive Management Director in which he was engaged
in the special case development, technical division management, public
relation management, and civil assets intergrative management work. In
2003, he served as Deputy Chief of Investment Management Department
in CALT, responsible on CALT's civil assets planning management,
corporate management, capital restructuring, and management appraisal
work. Having possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry
management, he was appointed as a Deputy General Manager of the
Company on 16 March 2007.

Mr.Wang Lijun, aged 36. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology with a Bachelor degree with major in industrial accounting
and National University of Defense Technology with a Master degree in
management. He was qualified as a professional Accountant in PRC in
May 1999 and has been a professional Senior Accountant in PRC since
August 2003. Prior to joining the Company, he was the Chief Accountant
with Beijing CASC Wan Yuan Science & Technology Corporation, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. He was appointed as a Financial
Controller of the Company on 10 May 2008.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present the Corporate Governance Report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures and regards as preeminent board
of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to all shareholders
as the core elements of its corporate governance principles. The Group
endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in accordance
with rules and regulations, and applicable codes and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has complied with all principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules") on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Code"), which became applicable to the Group
in respect of the year under review, and complied with the relevant code
provisions in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2008,
with the exception of one deviation from the Code Provision A4.l of
the Code which stipulates that Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

All of the Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term, except that Independent Non-executive Directors are of a fixed
term of 3 years, but are subject to retirement and rotation and re-
election at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in
accordance with the retirement provisions under the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken in this regard to ensure that the Group's
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
Code.
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THE BOARD

Board responsibilities and the relationship between board and

management

The Board has the responsibility for management of the Group, which
includes formulating business strategies, and directing and supervising the
Group's affairs, approving interim reports and annual reports,
announcements and press releases of interim and final results, considering
dividend policy, and approving the issue, allotment or disposal or grant of
options in respect of unissued new shares or debentures of the Group.

The overall management of the Group's business is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Group,
including the approval and formulation of all policy matters, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring
the performance of the senior management.

The Board's role is not to manage the business whose responsibility
remains vested with management. The Board and management fully
appreciate their respective roles and are supportive of the development
of a healthy corporate governance culture.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the management. The Board gives clear directions to the
management as to their powers of management, and circumstances
under which the management should report back. All Directors have full
and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances in carrying out their functions and duties after
making a request to the Board at the Group’s expenses.

Each Director is given contact details of the senior management and is
accessible to them for obtaining information and making enquiries when
required, and to receive adequate information, which must be complete
and reliable, in a timely manner.
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Board composition

The Board comprised seven directors including three Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-
executive Directors in wake of the resignations of four Independent
Non-executive Directors and the appointments of three Independent
Non-executive Directors since 23 January 2008. On 20 May 2008 and
thereafter through the end of the year 2008, the board comprised eight
directors after the appointment of one Non-executive Director thereon.
There was a majority of Non-executive Directors on the Board, with a
wide range of experience and calibre bringing valuable judgment on
issues of strategy, performance and resources. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 21 of this Annual Report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualification.

During the year 2008, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in appointment of a
sufficient number of three Independent Non-executive Directors, one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial
management expertise.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors adheres to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Group has received in writing confirmation of their
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Director
and considers them to be independent of the management and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment. The Board considers that each of the Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director brings his
own relevant expertise to the Board.

The directors are aware that they shall give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group.

The Directors of the Company are unrelated to each other in every
aspect, including financial, business or family.
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Chairman and General Manager

Mr. Han Shuwang is the Chairman and Mr. Wang Xiaodong is the General
Manager of the Group. The roles of the Chairman and the General
Manager are segregated and assumed by two separate individuals to
strike a balance of power and authority so that the job responsibilities
are not concentrated on any one individual. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the leadership, Group strategic and Board issues, while
the General Manager has the overall general management responsibilities
for Group operations and development in general.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. There are formal,
considered and transparent procedures for the appointment and removal
of Directors. The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure of
agreeing to the appointment of its members and for nominating
appropriate person for election by shareholders at the AGM, either to fill
a causal vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors. In the
nomination process, the Board of Directors makes reference to criteria
including accomplishment and experience in the industry, professional
and educational background and commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest.

The process for re-election of a director is in accordance with the
Group’s Articles of Association, which require that, other than those
Directors appointed during the year, one-third of the Directors for the
time being are required to retire by rotation at each AGM and are
eligible to stand for re-election. For those Directors appointed by the
Board during the year, they shall hold office until the next following AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election. The annual report and the
circular for AGM contain detailed information on election of Directors
including detailed biographies of all Directors standing for re-election to
ensure shareholders to make an informed decision on their election.
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Board meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on ad-hoc basis, as
required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total of
eleven meetings and at least once quarterly. The composition of the
Board and attendance of the Directors are set out below:

HERE,
EREERH

Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

BTES

BEELE (EFR)

ITRREL

FRAE
(HERTTEFZE-_FFTNF
mA—H EEXHERIHNTESF)

FHTES

RIxAE
(R=ZZFENFEA=-1+HEZ(T)

EEETE

BYFHTES
ITEEXE
(R=ZFENF—A=-+=HEZ()
HMERLL
(R=ZFENF—HA=-+=HEZ()
REREE
(R=ZFENF—A=-+=HEZ()
R E L&
(R=ZFENF—A=+=HFHF)
BERE
(R=ZFENF—HA=+=HEF)
N
(R=ZFENF—A=+=HFHF)
EHBERE
(R=ZFENF—A=+=HFHF)

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) [T
Mr.Wang Xiaodong 9111
Mr. Li Guang

(Executive Director through | April 2009 and

re-designated as Non-executive Director thereon) [T

Non-executive Directors

Mr.Wu Jiang
(appointed on 20 May 2008) 5/6
Mr.Tang Guohong [0/11

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr.Wang Dechen

(appointed on 23 January 2008) 10/10
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

(appointed on 23 January 2008) 10/10
Mr. Gordon Ng

(appointed on 23 January 2008) 10/10
Mr.Yiu Ying Wai

(resigned on 23 January 2008) 0/1
Mr. Wong Fai, Philip

(resigned on 23 January 2008) 0/1
Mr. Zhu Shixiong

(resigned on 23 January 2008) I/
Mr. Moh Kwen Yung

(resigned on 23 January 2008) 1/
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For a regular Board meeting, notice of at least fourteen days is given to
all Directors of the Group, who are given an opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for discussion and are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meeting. An agenda and accompanying document for
discussion are sent to all Directors of the Group at least three days
before the intended date of a regular Board meeting. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notices should be given.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept
by the secretary of the Group and are open for inspection at any
reasonable notice by any Director of the Group. Further, minutes of the
Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the Board Committees
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors of the Group for their comment and
records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
Board meeting is held.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter shall not be dealt with by a Committee
(except an appropriate Board Committee set up of that purpose
pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting) but a Board meeting
shall be held, during which such Director must abstain from voting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have
no material interest in the transaction shall be present at such Board
meeting.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Development and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. All
Board Committees of the Group are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are
posted on the Group’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.
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The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances at the
Group’s expenses.

A) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

I. No Directors or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration;

2. Recommendations will be made to the Board at least one time
per year of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments which include any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and the remuneration of Non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration; and

3. Review and recommend performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Committee has also approved the remuneration and the
discretionary bonuses of the Executive Directors by reference to
their respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing marketing conditions and the Group’s financial
performance. The Director’s fees and any other reimbursement or
emolument payable to the Directors during the vear are disclosed in
the Group’s financial statements.

28 | China Energine International (Holdings) Limited FEHAXSRER (£H) HRATF



B)

RET _EEN\EFNRRCERT —
REEegZRBUEEeKEZHE
BRAENIOT -

EEERREE

Corporate Governance Report

One committee meeting was convened for discussing the
remuneration policy for the year 2008 and the attendances of each
committee member at the meeting are set out as follows:
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Tang Guohong (Chairman) 11

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice I/
Mr. Gordon Ng I/1

Audit Committee

During the year 2008, the Audit Committee consisted of all of the
four previous Independent Non-executive Directors or three
Independent Non-executive Directors or three Independent Non-
executive Directors plus a Non-executive Directors (from 20 May
2008). The written terms of reference which describe the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with
reference to "A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the Code.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of external
auditor, review of the Group's financial information and oversight of
the Group's financial and accounting practices, internal control and
risk management. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and
final results of the Group.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2008 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Two committee meetings were convened during the year ended 3|
December 2008 and the attendances of each committee member at
these meetings are set out as follows:
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Non-executive Director

Mr.Wu Jiang

(appointed on 20 May 2008) [/
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 212
Mr.Wang Dechen 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the 2008 interim
financial report and the 2008 annual financial statements. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the internal control systems, and met with
the external auditor to discuss with them the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligation prior to the commencement of
the audit.

Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee consists of two
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and one
Independent Non-executive Director during the vyear. The
Development and Investment Committee is responsible for the
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control covering
all material controls, including financial and operational controls and
risk management functions.

The Board has considered the better allocation of resources and has
instructed the Audit Committee to discuss the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Company. As such, the Group
considers that sufficient review to ensure that the Group's internal
control is in order has been taken and no Development and
Investment Committee meeting was convened during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The composition of the Development and Investment Committee is
set out in the corporate information on page 2 of this annual report.
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Internal Control

The Directors have the overall responsibility for internal control and
setting appropriate policies. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group'’s system of internal control.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well defined management
structure with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement
of business objectives, so as to safeguard assets against unauthorized use
or disposition, to ensure proper maintenances of books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

The Board have conducted an annual review covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 3| December 2008, the Group has adopted the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standard and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statement of external auditor of the Group, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 41 to 43 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT") was appointed as the external auditor
of the Group by the shareholders at the last AGM of the Group. The
remuneration to DTT recognised for the year ended 31 December 2008
was set out as follows:

Fees relating to services rendered

FET

HK$'000

Eit R Audit services 2,800
JEE IR Non-audit services 350
3,150

32 | China Energine International (Holdings) Limited HEMXEFER (£E) FRAT



Y A ]

BRRABIBENER/AEE 2 BREMR
BRAREEZHAEN  NERFEHAA
BARTEERBR ZHEF -

AEEEFRLZEALEAET  BREERAR
EBEDATNEBENZ2EMAEBENR
E o REFREREPHERS  FH 20k
B o

AREZBARRHIERRAFAEG - L
RERENRAM  REBRREBEEIEELN
KENER E=ZEEERNMBEESEEE
e2ER (IMHERELE  RSRES

HKB) SRBREFAE LD EEMRE
M-EERENBREBRRAFAG LEZ
ZEB(BREEES)REMAIRER -

ERRBAFASAMAPR-_TEZXBFR
FERRBEHBRAFAGEK  FIIFE
RREAZR RERREFREMEEE

B o

BRESHMETNLTARR  ARFAF-FF
NE-A-HEBTEARRASE - g/
BELTAETRR  EERERRAFAE
MR @ BABARTRERARNESF X
EXRBRIREEREREERZRNA
REH BRERRZBRAENBRAER
T—EEXEEREE BRI AEEA

HE

NEBESRIBW (R I A ntpy
www.energine.hk) * UIEAREEERER L
RE MAEBZAH  EBELEREE
BBEM  CEELRREMERINZBIL
AR

EEEAREE
Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and
activities. These include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high
level of accountability and to keep informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board
Committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, are available to answer any questions from the shareholders.
A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in respect of each
issue to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of Directors.

An AGM circular was distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM, setting out details of each proposing
resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant information.

Pursuant to the latest amendment of the Listing Rules, all general
meetings of the Company to be conducted by poll from | January 2009,
the Chairman will explain the procedures for conducting a poll again at
the beginning of the AGM, and reveals how many proxies for and against
have been received in respect of each resolution. The poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange on the
business day following the shareholders” meeting.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group's
announcements, business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.
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INVESTORS’ RELATIONSHIP

The Company announced the name of the Company be changed from
“"CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited” to “China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited” as its English registered name and
adopted “F Bl K & IREIBR (5L E) AR 2 A" as its Chinese name
for identification purpose only. Shareholders' approval was obtained in
the Extraordinary General Meeting held in May 2008 and the issue of the
Certificate on Change of Name by the Register of Companies in the
Cayman Islands on 15 May 2008 and the Certificate of Registration of
Change of Corporate Name of Non-Hong Kong Company on 5 June
2008.

The change on the stock short names of the Shares incidental to the
change of Company name be traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited under the new English and Chinese stock short names of
“China Energine” and “H Bl fii X &R " respectively with effect from 16
June 2008. The stock code of the Company remains unchanged.

The change of Company name would not affect any of the rights of the
Shareholders. All existing share certificates in issue bearing the former
name of the Company will continue to be evidence of title to the Shares
and will be valid for trading, settlement, delivery and registration for the
same number of Shares in the new name of the Company. As such, there
were not any arrangement for the exchange of the existing share
certificates of the Company for share certificates bearing the new name
of the Company.

The Company did not amend its Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the year 2008.

The Company also announced that the address of the Company’s
registered office has been changed to Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY|-1111, Cayman Islands with effect from 3
April 2008.

Reference is made to the announcements on 9 April 2008, |5 May 2008,
27 May 2008 and 13 June 2008 and the circular of 18 April 2008 in
relation thereto.
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EFEREE
Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 44.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

CHARITABLE DONATION

The Group donated a sum of HK$1.14 million for Sichuan earthquake
relief during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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BriBEE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

BARNBARMBERIHEHE A 2H  There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s

T(WHRERAARERLAIMBREZLHH  Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would

BR) » WEREFEBLEBER - oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FE IR st 2 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

RIZZEZNFRRAN RN ERES - During 2008, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in
place.

FAT 2 H ik # A DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H " A28 84  The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at

DIk T IR 2 5 1,688,284,000/% 7T (= 31 December 2008 were HK$1,688,284,000 (2007:HK$1,737,947,000).

ZEE A 1 1,737,947,000E 1) o

EFE DIRECTORS
AERARBEAREAHEZESNT The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
HiTES Executive
BEELE (EFR) Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)
THBREE Mr. Wang Xiaodong
FHUTES Non-executive
RTkHE Mr.Wu Jiang
(R=ZFENFRA-TEZ) (appointed on 20 May 2008)
EEEESE Mr.Tang Guohong
FREE Mr. Li Guang
(HAERITEFZ-_TTNFMNA—A - (Executive Director through | April 2009 and
ERBERFHTEF) re-designated as Non-executive Director thereon)
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EFEREE
Report of the Directors

Independent Non-executive
Mr. Wang Dechen

(appointed on 23 January 2008)
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

(appointed on 23 January 2008)
Mr. Gordon Ng

(appointed on 23 January 2008)
Mr. Yiu Ying Wai

(resigned on 23 January 2008)
Mr. Wong Fai, Philip

(resigned on 23 January 2008)
Mr. Zhu Shixiong

(resigned on 23 January 2008)
Mr. Moh Kwen Yung

(resigned on 23 January 2008)

The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director and of the resigned
Independent Non-executive Director are from the date they were last
elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to
retirement and re-election under the Company's Articles of Association.

Mr. Wu Jiang by virtue of expiry, and Mr. Han Shuwang and Mr. Tang
Guohong by rotation, shall retire at the close of the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with the respective Article 99 and I 16 of
the Company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in
the register required to be maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise to be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”, at no time during the period was the Company, its
subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company or their associates (as defined in the "Listing
Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EFEREE
Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2008, so far as is known to the Directors, the
persons/entities had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
[0% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group and the amount of each of such person's interest
in such securities or in any options in respect of such capital were as

follows:
K EE g
(Hfat1) BO
227 Number of shares Percentage of
Capacity (Note ) shareholding
XIS ARER (HE2) 2,649,244,000(L) 73.10%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
BEREHREER (F:3) 2,649,244,000(L) 73.10%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 3)
ExBEBA 2,649,244,000(L) 73.10%

Beneficial owner

Note:

[. The letter "L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100%
equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is

deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2008,
had any interest or short position in the shares of underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group in any options in respect of such
capital.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 76.56% of
the Group’s turnover and turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 25.72% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 3| December 2008, purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 37.28% of
the Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier accounted for approximately 23.14% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers
or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, |7 April 2009
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BIARMETREE
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS CASIL TELECOMMUNICATIONS
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to |31,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

|7 April 2009

F 3} Annual Report 2008

43



44

GRERR

Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_TTN\GF+_A=1—HI*E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
i3 TER TET
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
HER Turnover 5 184,206 178,755
HEKK Cost of sales (176,391) (189,129)
EA (&) Gross profit (loss) 1,815 (10374)
H g A Other income 13,680 11332
HERDHKAK Selling and distribution expenses (10,516) (13,056)
THRER Administrative expenses (92,814) (87,772)
BREWMEATE (Decrease) increase in fair value of
OB 4>) 38 investment property (2,280) 6,722
JEE Y Bt & A A) Allowance for amounts due from
BB associates (17,837) (1,854)
B 7 B AR Finance costs 7 (34,069) (16,500)
i AN Share of results of associates 30,631 2,624
MRS R AR Impairment loss recognised in
HEEE respect of interest in an associate - (9.227)
JE A1 L 3 i Share of results of jointly
BRER controlled entities 41,048 20377
i 2B 1 k[ 422 ol Impairment loss recognised in
ERER respect of interests in jointly
2 REEE controlled entities 18 (424,165) (474793)
B B0 AT B 1B Loss before taxation (488,507) (570521)
A Taxation 8 (7,421) (1,510)
AEEEE Loss for the year 9 (495,928) (572,031)
MTALRER : Attributable to:
ARAERFTAA Equity holders of the Company (499,626) (573901)
DI R Minority interests 3,698 1,870
(495,928) 572031)
BREE-AX Loss per share - Basic 12 HK(13.79) cents HK(36.50) cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZFEZNEF_A=1T—H
At 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Wizt TiEn FEx
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
*RBEE Non-current assets
RENZ Investment property 13 20,520 21,000
nE - BERR Property, plant and equipment 14 309,261 30,602
WEN%  BERRE Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
Fftzgs plant and equipment 14 148,643 105,526
GES Goodwill 5 8,548
B EE Intangible assets I6 - 4900
iNGA=UNG A 3 Interests in associates 17 211,826 170,828
RERBHER 2 ER Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 949,695 1,241,996
1,648,493 1574852
REEE Current assets
BE Inventories 19 55,240 24867
B 5 REMEWHR Trade and other receivables 20 190,223 368,407
EREERAR Amounts due from related companies 2 15,291 5291
G t-INGIE Amounts due from associates 22 2,419 54960
BHEARTER Pledged bank deposits 3 41,599 1400
ROEGELRRE Bank balances and cash 23 212,465 174,871
517,237 639,796
REEE Current liabilities
EPREMEMNK Trade and other payables 24 114,880 49,59
fEf Eﬁk“_ 7 Amounts due to related companies 2 4,407 4407
B E N Amounts due to associates 0 1,452 3,656
ﬁ@‘ﬁ?@lﬁﬁzgm Borrowings - amount due within one year 25 170,600 135,180
291,339 192,834
RBEERHE Net current assets 225,898 446962
EEAENRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 1,874,391 2021814
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
R-ERIAZEN Borrowings - amount due after one year 25 591,090 447825
EREHE Deferred taxation 26 7,389 2,146
598,479 449971
1,275,912 [571,843
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RZFEFNFF+-H=1—H
At 31 December 2008

2008 2007
ik TEx THAL
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
EXRGE Capital and reserves

K& Share capital 27 362,400 362,400
i Reserves 836,429 1,205,458

ARAERREA Equity attributable to equity holders
b of the Company 1,198,829 1,567,858
SURRER Minority interests 71,083 3,985
BRAH Total equity 1,275,912 1,571,843

HREMZINEZHBERE - HEEEER  The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to |31 were approved
“TENEFMATEAMEREE - WHLL  and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 April 2009 and

TEERRESF are signed on its behalf by:
Han Shuwang Wang Xiaodong
B ITBRR

Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEF
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GERREZZEBR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_TZNF+_HA=1T—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

FRARRER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
‘ e  3dEg )8
Bx  BHEE  RAEE  Property EXGBE EBEE Accu- BREsR
Share  Special  Share revaluation Exchange  Generl  mulated BE  Minority by
capital  reserve  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total  interests Total

Ténr TEn TEn TEn TEn  FTEn  FTEn  TEn  TEn Tin
HKS 000 (;K$009 HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO0D (;K$003 HKSO0  HKSD00 BRSO HKSOO0

Tit | Tit!
(Note 1) (Note )
At | January 2007 01714 1754 45309 — 4900 380 (610417) 90274 2012 92,286

EEREYE Increase in fair value of land
Z TH R and buildings upon
BTz {ransfer to nvestment
AR BRI propetis - - L - - — I I
MEERELEZ Deferred tax letilty arsing
ELERIB on reveluation of
BE properties = = = (465) = = = (463) = (465)
FEGINERS Exchange differences arising
EEZER on translaton of foreign
=28 operations - - - - 10722 - - 1 101 10823
REZANEEZER Nt income recognised
A ON:S directly in equity = = = 1399 10722 = = 212 101 1221
AEE (FBE) &F (Loss) proft for the year - = = - - — (5B (1) 10 (70l
REEEHER Total recognised income
WA (Fx%) @5 (expense) for the year = = = 1399 10722 — (57900 (561.780) 971 (559.809)
% 15 347 Issue of shares 260,686 — /%5714 — — — — 2056400 — 2056400
=N Captal contribution from a
DERR minorty shareholder of
H & & subsidiary = = - - _ _ _ _ ) )
BITRG Expenses incurred in
P EE connection with
ZHEX issue of shares — — (17036) — — — — (17036) — (17036)
i g3 Transfer = = = = = 134 (1134 = = =
R-_ZEZL+F+—HB At 31 December 2007
=+—BEK and
—ETN\FE—H—H at 1 January 2008 362,400 11754 2,261,711 1399 16,622 14772 (119,660) 1,567,858 398 1,571,843
RERNEEER Exchange differences arising
ZENH =58 on translation recognised
directly in equity = = = — 13057 = = 130597 £ 130939
KEE (BR) % T (Loss) profit for the year - - - - - — (4968 (499626) 369 (495928)
AEEBRER Total recognised income
IGA (Fx) &% (expense) for the year — — — — 130597 — (4968 (369009) 400 (364989)
Wi B Y /8 Additon on acquistion of
A AN 2 20N (Kia#30)  subsidries (Note ) = = - - - _ _ — N8 608
(o NG| Capital contribution from
DB R minority shareholders of
H& a Subsidiary - - = - - — _ _ 2850 2650
i Tranfer = = = = = 5062 (5062) = = =
RZZETENEFE At 31 December
+-A=+—8” 2008 62400 17 25071 1399 146219 19634 (1700348) 1198829 T8 121591
His - Note:
1. AEEZERIEEERARDBTRATERAANT I. The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
FFEAMBARCETRARBZZERREAEE amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the
R—NAAEFENB+—BETEAN B E b EER issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the aggregate

Z 44 %116,025,000/ 7T °

b
=]
N

&

amount of HK$ 116,025,000 transferred from other reserves pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation on || August 1997.

BARERERENREARKME ([RE]) w8 2. Included in general reserve is reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's Republic of
AREOREEFBRRINIEREERBOREE China (the “"PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior year losses or (ii)

expand production operations.

F 3} Annual Report 2008

47



n‘l\éiﬁﬁﬁii
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_TTN\GF+_A=1—HI*E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Kt 2008 2007
NOTE FET TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RETHDEEZRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
B B AT B 1B Loss before taxation (488,507) (570,521)
FTFISIAEHRE Adjustments for:
2K A Interest income (4,971) (2,220)
FEF X Interest expenses 34,069 16,500
NI 3 Share of results of associates (30,631) (2,624)
FBHEAREHERRE Share of results of jointly
controlled entities (41,048) (22,377)
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 4,900 4,900
ME BERREBZNE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 9,627 6,549
HEME - BB K Loss on disposal of property,
REZER plant and equipment 276 95
BRARNAREZEHEBER Impairment loss recognised in
ZRERBE respect of interests in jointly
controlled entities I8 424,165 474,793
BRREE QAR Impairment loss recognised in
2 BIEEE respect of interest
in an associate —_ 9,227
REWE 2 A FERD (3Em) Decrease (increase) in fair value
of investment property 2,280 (6,722)
REEE Allowance for doubtful debts 11,441 26,340
FE e B i A R SRR B Allowance for amounts due
from associates 17,837 [,854
BRETERE Allowance for obsolete inventories 12,738 38,723
NG Ff 2 e e Effect of foreign exchange rate
2oy E changes on intercompany
balances 1,810 3,800
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Kt 2008 2007
NOTE FER FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
LCEECHPALLERD Operating cash flows before movements
Beng in working capital (46,014) (21,683)
FEz (EmRd (Increase) decrease in inventories (10,126) 3,327
B 5 I H i J& Wk Increase in trade and other receivables (37,811) (6,205)
JE Yot & A ARk (48 0n) B A (Increase) decrease in amounts
due from associates (1,976) 7,694
B REMBENR2EMOKL)  Increase (decrease) in trade and
other payables 3,018 (2,158)
ANE AN Pl R Decrease in amounts due to associates (2,204) (10,508)
ARgEcBe Cash used in operations (95,113) (29,533)
BRI PEH Income taxes paid (2,178) (159)
ARRETH RS T Net cash used in operating
activities (97,291) (29,692)
REED Investing activities
BEWE BERRME Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (67,586) (3,086)
REERAZIRE Investments in associates (58,082) (64,347)
BRRITERZ (M) # > (Increase) decrease in pledged
bank deposits (40,199) 167
WEREAR - HIKREKE Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of
ZHRERREEEY cash and cash equivalents
acquired 30 (5,990) (85,529)
BHRZEHEEKRRZRE Dividend received from a jointly
controlled entity 252,281 —
BE S A RWEZRE Dividend received from associates 7,806 —
&) Interest received 4,971 2,220
HEME - BB RZBRER Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4,322 644
WEYE  BERRE Deposits paid for acquisition of
fixffzike property, plant and equipment (34,072) (105,526)
) Bt & 1 A S B K Loan advanced to associates - (37,696)
BERNBBEEK Repayment of loan to associates 37,696 —
®B (BR)REZTH2HELFHE  Net cash from (used in) investing
activities 101,147 (293,153)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_TTN\GF+_A=1—HI*E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Kt 2008 2007
NOTE FET FRET
HK$°000 HK$'000
METEE Financing activities
MEABR New loans raised 413,076 304,699
B8 AR DEIRE LA Capital contribution from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary 2,850 2
BRER Repayment of loan (360,137) —
BARFE Interest paid (34,069) (16,500)
BAORMAEECHAX Expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of shares — (17,036)
B 7 < P 1% 3R Proceeds from issue of shares — 142,400
METDFELEZREFEHE Net cash from financing activities 21,720 413,565
BehBeFED Net increase in cash and
1% 0% R cash equivalents 25,576 90,720
SNEEREH T E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 12,018 2,374
FOzHReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 174,871 81,777
FR72ASREEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
(RITEAKRE®) of the year, representing bank
balances and cash 212,465 174,871
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. —RE#H

ARAAE—RRAESHSEMK I 2E
BRF - EROREBBE RSB R
NE ([HERFT]) £ o RRF 2 B
B% 2 7] & Astrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech]) (—HAIRKBHB RS
FfMKZzAR)  EEEARAF
73.10% 2 25 ° Astrotech/ F Bl A &5 5
Mot sl ([ EPTl) 2 EHE - P EIf
ABBEERR([FME]) EREEE
A BT BN A Bl 2 SRR A A
TR NS REG ARFEARLNE
(BB Z2 AR

ARBEMPERBAREETEE
WEBBERRFRZAREFR —

BEFE  AARZNEEBEBT -
FR - AEEETYE (B30 ®X
NBERFEER -EZATHEARAZ
NEEKEBTEAARE 522
Ai—ﬂ—5@$@°$@ﬂm%§
BEIYEBRBAR - AQARFB IR
RAZHBBECREHAZERRE
BARE -FHELAZFEBEERES
BEREEBLRARRE o

GEMBBRRGEBRINETLRY - RE
RREARABRRRT - RHORBERZ
LM  BEAHOREERRERE -

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"). Its immediate holding company
is Astrotech Group Limited (“Astrotech™), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which holds 73.10% interest in the
Company. Astrotech is wholly owned by China Academy of Launch
Vehicle Technology Limited ("CALT"). China Aerospace Science &
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company
of the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both
CASC and CALT are companies established in the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC").

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the

annual report.

In prior years, the Company’s functional currency was Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"). During the year, the Group has substantially
expanded its operations in Mainland China following the acquisition
in note 30. The directors have determined that the functional
currency of the Company shall be changed from HK$ to Renminbi
(“RMB") effective from | January 2008. The effects of the change of
the functional currency of the Company have been accounted for
prospectively. All items of the financial statements of the Company
were translated into RMB using the exchange rate at the date of
change. The resulting translated amounts for non-monetary items are

treated as their historical costs.

The consolidated financial statements continue to be presented in
HK$ as the directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with
the shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors

are located.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AE_FE\E1_A=+—HI%E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. EHEHEREETEEY 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

BREEA ([FEMBR HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

A/ STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RAFE  AEEER NI BmEES In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments

MAg ([EEGHMAS]) Bz % A and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong

EAEMNEITRRE([MEEMBRS Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), which are or

Q) e have become effective.

B gL ERIAZERNE HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of financial assets
FHRRES (Amendments)

B 5 s 2
F75 (B3R

B (BRI %R ERRBREERSE HK(IFRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and treasury share
EREZE9) 2% SERER transactions
-REBENR BRAR 5

BB (BRE % & PR 75 45 i 22 HK(IFRIC) - INT 12 Service concession arrangements
ERBZE®)

—REF12%

B (AR %R B G ERE19% HK(IFRIC) - INT 14 HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit
EREZE9) -HATRNEE asset, minimum funding requirements
-REF 4% ZRE - ZEEE and their interaction

FERMEZ
HEEER

ERZERBBHBREERNLEYR The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how

BREINAEEREAMABESE fﬁﬁfﬁ the Group's results and financial position for the current or prior

CEBSIUBMRARNERNERTE - accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly,

bt BAHBEHRETHE - no prior period adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ERMEREETEEM

BREEN(TEFEMBR

HEE8]]) @

AEBYEREFEAATESRHERR
EMzHBEREETED

]
2 o

E3

BENBIRSE
8 (B 3T AS)
BB G R
F15% (BFTIR)
BB G R
£23% (BEIHR)
BB g R
£27% (BETHR)
BB g R
F2R1%R
(BET )
Eper Rl
F395% (BRI )
BRMBREES
FIRREEGS
AR 275
(BET )
BRMBREES
F25 (BFTA)
BERBREER
F35% (BFTHR)
BRMBREES
ET5% (BFTA)
BRMBRELES
F8%%
A5 (BRHBRSE

S
\UH

\

2EZEg) -2E

FORREEGH

£/ F39%: (BF]X)

B (ARMERE

2EZEg) -2E

135

BREMBREEL
B!
HHRRZ 2T

fig & A2

e REN I
S
BERREAY
/ﬁﬁ V‘ﬁlﬂ
Ve
ERER-Ri:Eapid
ERER
INGENENEG)
TH BRSNS
R R E A2

BB Rt Rt s8?

HEFHERIA
BB

KPR e

&5 %

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS | (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & |

(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS | & HKAS 27

(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - INT 9

& HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - INT 13

Improvements to HKFRSs !

Presentation of financial statements 2

Borrowing costs ?

Consolidated and separate financial
statements °

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation ?

Eligible hedged items *

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate ?

Vesting conditions and cancellations *

Business combinations °

Improving disclosures about financial
instruments 2

Operating segments >

Embedded derivatives *

Customer loyalty programmes *

F 3} Annual Report 2008

53



& BB R R M BT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE_FF)\F+_A=f—HI%E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. ERFMEREETEEMR 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
BREER ([FEMHBR HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
HEH]) @ STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
BF(FREBHRER FHERRR HK(IFRIC) - INT 15 Agreements for the construction of real
#ZBZBEg) RE estate 2
15 %

B (BRMBER RENEBREFE HK(IFRIC) - INT 16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
RBZEg)-RE ziHe operation ¢
£16 5

AR (FRHGRE MBEFEDRFERS HK(IFRIC) - INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to
#ZBZE8)-RE AB owners *
F17 %

EX(BRHBER KEFPEREE' HK(IFRIC) - INT 18 Transfers of assets from customers ’

ZEZEE) 2B
£18 5

T ORZETAF-R-—HAZERBENHE Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009
EHRER - BB B REEFELR except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
ZEFTRIR_ZZAFLA-AHZ beginning on or after | July 2009.

BHRIGEFERREER -

2 RIZENF-A-BRZERENE 2 FEffective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009.
EHRER -

¢ RIZZAFLA-BRZERBHNE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009.
EHRER -

O RIBZAFARASTHIZBERD #  Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009.
FERRER -

b RIZZN\FLA-BRZERENE > Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2008.
EHRER -

¢ RNIZTEN\F+A-BHZERBNF ¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | October 2008.
EHRER -

7 O RIETAFLA-HIZERNERE 7 Effective for transfers on or after | July 2009.

M o

ARERBMR-_T—ZF-—HA—-B¥xH The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's

% EREENBRSENEIN (BT accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date is

W) IR BEREB gt RE - on or after | January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the

ARRRRMBARIZEREZE A Group's accounting treatment for changes in a parent's ownership

BB G EUFE 27 (B R) BEER interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate that

SEEMBEAREH 2 EFHERE - KA the application of the other new and revised standards, amendments

RAESRAERAEMTRERLEBTE or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the

Bl - BRI RETEHAEE L XER financial position of the Group.

BRI EREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. XEENBK

BAMBREDBEELRALER
WoRRENEEEATEIE LK
TX&HEE A -

ARANEEMETERARKR -
ARBEHMBERBEREHA CEXBKRE
RENEER  -MELZFERER R
HeBRIEFAELKRARRE °

HEMBRRDRREEGHMASH
B BERBEREERRR - 1o
BAMBRREEBRIAES LHAA
REBRBAGIMAE ZERRE -

GERBEEE

FEMBREBBARRRARBHEH
ER(AMBRA) ZHMBERER - WAR
AEENER -BEBZHMERREERR
RUAEERBPERD  ARARGEE
I o

RERBBREEZMBRABREED R
AKRBEMPAHEAAEREENAH
IE(ER) St ARRBRERA °

MNE - HEA RS REBGIELAE
ESHEHBREREBEMKE QA
FTERB &R -

FESEARRIZER S REHRERE
ARE MY -

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the investment property, which is
measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out

below.

Upon the change of the functional currency of the Company from
HK$ to Renminbi, the Company translates all items into the new
functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of the
change. The resulting translated amounts for non-monetary items are

treated as their historical cost.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those

used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.
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HE-_TTN\GF+_A=1—HI*E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GRREEE (F)

PEBERERBRECAHNBAREE
FERKRERNERAKEEZRASHZ
Bl e LB RERAHEEFERRER
ABAMHBARZZEEESE  URAE
AHBEHELEBRREGE IR A LS
g LEBRREEBRBLDBBRE
ERBARER EBRARE DY
o ERLBRRABHNRNEERE
AR NELBINRENBHEZTERE
BROM o

EBaH

WEBEBTRAKEEAR - WERA
BRBEMARBERBREBERES 2
PHEMINZEE  EEFAEZR
BERBETZRATIAZ A VEEER
B ANEMEREREA G AKX
Ko RBBLIHAREEEMBREE
RIESH XA 0| 2 BRI 2 A 38R
BE AENRIAAE DERARKE
Az A PEERER

AURBEL AERRAREE  TIFR
RAGE  DEBEHRABLHAKE
RERRBABAEE  ABERIABE
ZAVFEEFE ERTD WRER
& AEERBFUBLOABENEE &
ERIREEZAVEEFR I EaHE
BEBAGKA  BIELRBANEER
REABRERT

BT 2 > BRI R S RE R
ZOBBERAE AERAAAES
AT FEZ IS E -

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is

able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at

their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is

recognised immediately in consolidated income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority's proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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3. FETEBE

i1

i

REARMEL ZAE  BRERAS
RAEBENEREZEARGEERALAZA
BREE BRERFIARBBERATEZ
o ZBBEDEKRARREMRITRES
B -

BE-REBHELZERCEBRER
REEREXRLIMED

RRERANSANE  WERELEZEERT
ORI EAARIR S BN - FJEHMN
ReEf AR  RHRREREEZH
AAEDSH CEEBEZRBRRS
BUSFRNAEMNA AR HEREZ D
SEETRENR AR XERBEE
ZWEMELZBHEMNS  CEERE
ZHRBACEUNZIBEFE THEAE
TRERN - EREGRS B 27 E
SEORZEM REE  RETHE
BEEE  BEHRZEN AERE
B HENBUREECREERESE
RUPINEEZEM c EMEBEEZ KA
B -BABZEMREERNEERES
BaXAER BHEZREBEBRRER
R T EE -

HRHEMBRAAK RANLzHE
BhHeEeEETHERESERA
&R -

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is

carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is

presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REBEAT ZE#D

Interests in associates

BEDAEAREREHETREREARE
N MAFEMBATINAGELE
HZEE BAFYENEUZ2EZKE
RB B REERKETREEH L
RESZEBRZEN -

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

BEDA 2 XE BERBEIAGR
REERZEEAMBREAR - BE
Bk NBERARZEDTVEKAR
HAEERGBRTIE  URAKED
hZBERRCEEFECRERE

EEHAR  RREEFRCERN 2 RE
EBE - EAKRENERBERRZER
HERKBHERZBE QA 2 (B
BREMNEHERZ  MxRBEREE
i%W$E@%%%A“TZ&§@$
Z—H#2)  AIXEETBEERRE
ﬁZﬁ—iEE°ﬁ%DMZ%EEW
BE MBEENAKRBEEELEAER
HEEREIRRZBERAFLIRE
RRBHER o

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in

these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of

accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of

the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled

entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of a
jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for

impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where a group transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity.
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3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established.
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HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into account of

their estimated residual values, using the straight line method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to

accumulated losses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated

useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amounts of the assets and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement when the assets are derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in

which it is incurred.

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they

are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

64 | China Energine International (Holdings) Limited $EfXERER (£EH) HRAF



& BB 4R R B BT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. EEEEHER @)

BE (&)

MR B AR - & QB AR KR
ERMELACHREZE  JTHIARLT
BMEAE  RIFASEAZGHREZE
ZEE - MZEERERFALENR
ARG EE -

BELEHEEAEZ REHEENEBELER
Bz LEABAEERMERT G
DB YR 2 8 3 8P 0 B BB (R R

EERENRENNAREEREES
BEAER L HEHE o EERERE
AERFHRNB R ABRE - EHE
EHEYREBERAERT NG ST
AE - BIEREBIE IS B A 25 R
# o

HE

WERIERIIARAEBEE 2BARBD
Rl kBB TEEA  MZFAL
BIEREME - AERMENHRME

REHE -

AEBEREHA

gedarNHsRARBRAERE
REmRIR - (FRFTUREHE KR
e RERNE TN EERANER
EERAREERSRD °

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interest in jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.
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3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term

of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases, except for those that are classified and accounted

for as investment properties under the fair value model.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
expense items are recognised in the same period as those expenses
are charged in the consolidated income statement and are reported

separately as “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered services

entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of loans and receivables

are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies, amounts due from associates, bank balances and
cash and pledged bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

* default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in consolidated income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and amounts due from associates, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in consolidated income statement. When trade
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to consolidated income statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through consolidated income statement to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual

interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to related companies, amounts due to associates and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. FEEHHE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

M (&)

EXHAGERERHEREEL CE
AEBNES 2 R ERRRMNE
B NWRFEIIRZFEKRRENR
BEACEAZENZPMEGF ARR
HENREEENESARRRELE
BZFERBRELZELZRKIN -
ERBEAT  EXLZRTEERESA
e o

RABTENGEAMBHREMS * A%
EREEEQARETIAINONEEET
RZBEERABRNERERERAZIRES
BMAREL  MEFEZWARRAXAE
AEZVHERBE - HEHHHAERRE
ZRBAR  RZBERLT - BAIRAR
SGRPCEIEER -ELZERER
(WmB) IR AR B (B
) - ZEEBIEBEBCELZRT
R EBIINER 2 AR EE R A

WEBIEBHELEZAMNEERE
ERAEM2INERIELHERAT
BEAERRIEBNRBCEERAR
WIREEAZBTEXEMRE - EX
EEXCEENBREELRHE -

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements
in Hong Kong dollars, the assets and liabilities of the Group entities
which are stated at functional currency of the respective group
entity other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences which related to a
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation or
denominated in other presentation currencies are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslate at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences

arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.
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HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period, are

discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 3| December
2008, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$8,548,000 (2007: nil).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note
5.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and amounts

due from associates

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 3| December
2008, the carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due
from associates are HK$41,910,000 (2007: HK$61,869,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$138,664,000 (2007:
HK$127,223,000), and HK$2,419,000 (2007: HK$54,960,000), net of
impairment loss for an associate of HK$35,335,000 (2007:
HK$17,498,000) respectively.
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5 EXH 5. TURNOVER

AEERREFENEXEIMAT ¢ An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows:
2007
HK$'000
EmiEE Sales of goods 167,034

HERERGES Sales of electricity from operation of

EW)) wind power field —
AR 7% U A Revenue from services [1,72]
178,755
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HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

(A) Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into the following divisions: Communication Products, Intelligent
Transportation Systems (“ITS"), Broadband Wireless Access,
Wind Energy and Rare-earth Permanent Magnetic Motor
(“REPM"™) Products. These divisions are the basis on which the

Group reports its primary segment information.

The Wind Energy Business and REPM Products are two new
business segments in current year under the Group's business
expansion and development. Comparative figures have been

restated to comply with the current year's presentation.

Principal activities are as follows:

Communication ~ —  manufacture and distribution
Products of communication products
TS —  development, manufacture and distribution

of global positioning system

application products

Broadband — development and distribution of broadband
Wireless Access system, equipment and accessories

Wind Energy —  sales of electricity from operation of
Business wind power field and manufacture and

trading of wind energy related products

REPM Products — manufacture and distribution of REPM
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6. ¥ RMENE ) 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) 28R (&) (A) Business segments (Continued)

(i) BE_ZZENFT+_A=+— (i) Segment information about these businesses for the year
AIEEE  BRLEXKZS ended 31 December 2008 is presented below:
HEMZIWT
BaE R Income statement

WL
Wind energy
WL
BREGEN  BEBEE  BBER
BRER Broadband  Operationof Wind Energy H1EHER
Communication H&RBAL  Wireless  Wind Power Related REPM &4
Products ITS Access Field Products Products  Consolidated

TET TER TR TET T TERL TET
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

1] TURNOVER
HiMHE External sales 55,797 3572 8894 3985 47774 35,184 184,206
Ed | RESULT
524 Segment et (6966 9 @) 7009 606 W5 Y
AEAEATDER  Unallocated corporate expenses (49,788)
SRR WM Unallocated corporate income 9,007
BHAE Finance costs (34069)
RENE Decrezse i fair value

ATERY of investment property (2280)
EUBEAFR  Alowance for amounts

LB due from associates (17837)
ERAREE Impairment loss recognised

ERERH in respect of interest in jointly

Eﬁ§ DREEE  controlled entities (424165)

FBERTEE : Share of results of associates

*E’%‘?ﬂéé& %A - Broadband wireless access - - (1,09) - - - (1,090)

-B5EE - Operation of wind power field - - - 34383 - - 34383

-BNEEHEE - Wind energy products - - - - (1428) - (1428)

En

BEERED  -ROPMproducs - - - - - (1234 (1234
FhRRSE Share of results of ointly controlled

HERZE: entifles

-NEZRRER - Automotive system and products - - - - - - 47118

-EHEERE - Wind energy faclities - - - - (6,070) - (6,070)
BHiER Loss before taxation (488,507)
iR Taxation (7421)
KEEER Loss for the year (495928)
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6. ¥BERHMENE » 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) EFHERH (&) (A) Business segments (Continued)
() BEZZZENEF+_A=1+— (i) Segment information about these businesses for the year
RIEFE  FRALSEBZD ended 31 December 2008 is presented below: (Continued)

BEMZFMT : (8)

EEEER Balance sheet
BH%E
Wind energy
BH%E
EREREA B5EE REER
BRER Broadband Operation of Wind Energy HIEHER

Communication EHRBAS Wireless  Wind Power Related REPM 24
Products ITS Access Field Products Products Consolidated

TEL TEL TEL FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

gE ASSETS
AEEE Segment assets 35,825 15,630 20,132 430463 86,018 79,356 667,424
REEATER Interests in associates
-BERBER - TS = 799 = = = — 799
-EREREA - Broadband wireless
access = = 6515 = = = 6515
-BNEERBESR - Wind energy products - - - — 142 — 142
-E5ER - Operation of wind
power field - - - 203,090 — — 203,09
KRS Interests in jointly
BB ER controled entities
- AEZRRER - Automotive system
and products = = = = = = 902418
-BNEERE -Wind energy facilties — — — — 49077 — 49277
AIARAREE Unallocated corporate assets 336,785
GRAELE Consolidated total assets 2165730
8f LIABILITIES
HEBE Segment liabilties 12,852 9,999 3646 2,157 — B712 52,366
AEAE Unallocated
RAAE corporate liabilties 837452
GRAfl Consolidated total
48 liabilities 889,818
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6. ¥ RHMENE » 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) EFHERH (&) (A) Business segments (Continued)

() BE_ZZENFT+_A=+— (i) Segment information about these businesses for the year
AIEEE  BRLEXEKZS ended 3| December 2008 is presented below: (Continued)
BEMZNWT : (&)

Hi & Other information
EHEE
Wind energy
EHEE
ERERRL  BHEE  REER
BAER Broadband Operationof Wind Energy H1EHER
Communication ERRXBZHK  Wireless  Wind Power Related REPM  #BAE &4
Products ITS Access Field Products Products ~ Unallocated Consolidated

TEn Fén TEn Tén Fén TEn Tén Fén
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 FK$000 HKS000

ERHEN Capttal additions
-h% BER - Property, plant
B and equipment 1,180 670 (789 271810 = 10322 324 290,045

REREH Depreciation and amortisation
- EBER - Property, plant

BL and equipment 3361 [ 446 1833 1,051 — 89 1077 9,621
~RIEREFTE - Technology license right - - 4,900 - - - - 4900
RERE Allowance for doubtful debts - - 1441 - - - = 1441
REHE Allowance for

] obsolete nventories - 358 12,380 - - - - 12738
HEME Loss on disposal

HER of property, plant and

BB EE equipment - 7 178 - - = 19 276
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(i) Segment information about these businesses for the year
ended 3| December 2007 is presented below:

BEMZNMT :
BERX Income statement
BA%E
Wind energy
ENEE
AREREA  E5EE  BEER
BRER Broadband Operationof Wind Energy H1EHER
Communication E#RXBZH Wireless ~ Wind Power Related REPM e
Products ITS Access Field Products Products  Consolidated
T T T TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
£x8 TURNOVER
e External sales 69,144 45397 64214 - - 178,755
28 RESULT
EE Segment result (9.342) 1,802 (73,380) — — (80,920)
AR Unallocated
RAER corporate expenses VRN
FIAR Unallocated
REKA corporate income 480
BBRA Finance costs (16,500)
BZ-BBERA  Imparment loss recognised
E&ZHEHE  in respect of interest
in an associate 9.220)
By HM\I =€ Impairment loss recognised
ERZBEBE  inrespect of interest in
jointly controlled entities (474793)
BN Impairment loss recognised
BELA in respect of amount due
ZREER from an associate = = (1854) = = (1,854)
REMERTE  Increase in fair value of
i investment property 672
15 H@’# EDFEEE  Share of results of associates
-fiEn - Communication products (2337) — — — — (2337)
- ’é” ER@RE  -ITS = (642) = — — (642)
~EREEEN - Broadband wireless access - - (3271) = = (3271)
-BIEBER - REPM products = = = = = (1949) (1949)
-BREs - Operation of wind power field . . = 10823 . . 10823
Ffi 4 ﬂﬁ“ =8 Share of results of jointly
3 controlled entites
-REZGRER - Automotive system and
products = = = = = = 20,194
-BNEER - Wind energy facilties - - — — 2183 - 2183
BRAER Loss before taxation (570,521)
B Taxation (1510)
KEEEE Loss for the year (572031)
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6. ¥ RHMENE » 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) B8R (&) (A) Business segments (Continued)
(i) BZE_ZTZt+F+_A=+— (i) Segment information about these businesses for the year
AESE  FREEEKZS ended 31 December 2007 is presented below: (Continued)

BERZIWT « (8)

-9-3=Ri £ Balance sheet
BHBE
Wind energy
BHEE
EREEEA BiREE RBER
BREm Broadband  Operation of Wind Energy HIE#ER

Communication B#RBALR Wireless  Wind Power Related REPM Ge
Products ITS Access Field Products Products  Consolidated

TET TEL TET TET TET TEL TET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKs 000

BE ASSETS
PEEE Segment asses 35,850 24845 83026 = = = 143721
ESE DA 25 Interests in associates
-BRRERRE - — 678 - - - — 678
-EREEEA - Broadband wireless access — — 6,076 — — — 6,076
-HIBKER - REPM products — — - - - 8,289 8,289
-B5EE - Operation of wind power field ~ — — — 55,785 — — 95,785
RERZEHEE  Interests in jointly controlled

2B entities
—ABZBRER - Automotive system and

products — — — — — — 819823

“ENEBRIE - Wind energy facilties - - - - .11 - €011
RESERAEE  Unallocated corporate assets 658,103
GREERH Consolidated total assets 2214648
af LIABILITIES
AEAE Segment liabiltes 14275 12,785 16,542 = = - 43,402
RESERABE  Unallocated corporate liabites 599,203
GAEERH Consolidated total liabilities 642,805
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EBRBESE 2 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) B8R (&) (A) Business segments (Continued)
(i) BZE-_ZTT+tF+_A=+— (i) Segment information about these businesses for the year
ALEE  FRAEEXRK2S ended 31 December 2007 is presented below: (Continued)

BERZENWMT - (8)

Hit & B Other information
EEESEA
BAER Broadband
Communication BHEXEZA Wireless REAE &e
Products ITS Access Unallocated Consolidated

TiExT TET TExT TExT TET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

BRI Capital additions
-M% BER#EE - Property plant and
equipment 146 100 77 3,664 4987
REREH Depreciation and
amortisation
—M% BER#EE - Property plant and
equipment 2828 1,360 [,740 621 6,549
— RITR A& - Technology license
right = = 4900 = 4900
AEEE Allowance for
doubtful debts — — 26,340 — 26,340
REGFEEE Allowance for
obsolete inventories — 93 38,630 — 38,723
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6. ¥ RHMENE » 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(B) MESE (B) Geographical segments

AEEZEBURBEAERTFECH The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other

3 [ o regions of the PRC.

() THRHFIAEEHEERRER (i) The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales
EPHBRMNE 2 METISZZ A by geographical market based on geographical location of
o customers:

2008 2007

FET FE T

HK$°000 HK$:000

H PRC 126,342 71,401
Bk Hong Kong 24,575 15,462
e United States of America 28,539 82,151
Hity Unallocated reconciling item 4,750 9,741
184,206 178,755

(i) ATHEEERAFEDE K (i) The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the
ERZBZEEESNT - DR segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
BEMBEZMBETON - equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the

assets are located.

PEEEREE RENE BERRB
Carrying amount Additions to property,
of segment assets plant and equipment

2008 2007 2008 2007
FET TET FET TET
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000

H PRC 650,945 84,877 288,212 2,984
&k Hong Kong 16,479 58,844 1,833 2,003
667,424 143,721 290,045 4,987
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7. HMBHA 7. FINANCE COSTS
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RITREMERFI S M - Interest on bank and other loans:
-ERIENERER - wholly repayable within five years 33,224 16,500
-PERDERTHER - not wholly repayable within five years 845 —
34,069 16,500
8. HIA 8. TAXATION
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AERBRBAXHERE Tax charge for the year comprises:
ENEARIIR - Current tax
REI R EMET PRC Enterprise Income Tax 2,178 109
EERE (BR) TR : (Over)underprovision in prior years
BE Hong Kong — (330)
FEARMENR PRC Enterprise Income Tax — 50
- (280)
B E TR % i (P 5 26) Deferred tax charge (note 26) 5,243 1,681
7,421 1,510
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8. $ilE &)

AEEHRBAX L ERBAERZHED

8. TAXATION (Continued)

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the loss before

D taxation is as follows:
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$'000
bR B AT B 1R Loss before taxation (488,507) (570,521)
BRPBEERMEH Tax credit at PRC Enterprise
HE26% 2 HIBAXH Income Tax of 25%
(ZZZ 5 : 33%) (A7) (2007: 33%) (Note) (122,127) (188,272)
FE (6 6 & 0 A) Tk SR R4 o Share of results of associates and jointly
ERXAE controlled entities (17,920) (8,250)
0T R AT HIBR B ¢ Tax effect of expenses not deductible
ZRBRE for tax purpose 122,296 163,616
REERNAMBEEZ5  Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
LB E not recognised 3,001 10,147
BN RRBA A Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1,947) (1,196)
ZHBTE
REERE R Tax effect of losses not recognised 16,823 20,814
ZHBTE
AL REHERZBIEER Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (3,725) (2,070)
RIS BB 2 BA A 2 Tax effect of undistributed profits of subsidiaries 5,812 —
MGTE
EHMAZEREERK Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
BB AR 2 TRBEFLE  operating in other jurisdictions 6,307 7,001
BYHBE—HEMBARRH  Effect of tax exemptions granted to a subsidiary
Berye in the PRC (801) -
TEBBIR Underprovision in prior years — (280)
Bt Others (298) —
REEHIEXH Tax charge for the year 7,421 1,510
et Note:

FR - BEARZHEZEATENGHENRA
PEEEMERE  IAKERBREE BN
RZBERRE - L BRBFEBFIATARFE

271

During the year, the tax rate used for tax reconciliation purpose has been
changed from Hong Kong Profits Tax rate to PRC Enterprise Income Tax

rate, which is the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is now

substantially based. Comparative figures have been represented to conform

with current year's presentation.
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8. BilE &)

RZBEENERBZ-+B BELE
ZRBCEENFRAKHER) - A
AFEHREHR175%H L E165% B
2008/2009:F T F E R ER » At - &
W BB G IRE G ERR R T
16.6%(ZTZ+F : 17.5%) 5t 8 - A
REXRBEMNE BB EBBELEERHE
B WMEARBBSNFBHEASIAR
IF o

REFBABEZERRG  AREE
THEREKENMBAR  REELE
BANEEEMFEASNPELEMRS
B EE MBRAANZR=ZFESR
50% Bl RATBH o &AM
KR2%(“ETLF  FT) -REEZX
EHRBEER  BARTRERAENR
ELEE - AERBEIRN_-F—=
FEm o

RZZBZLFE=RA+/ B REARHL
MBERBEFEARXNBEAREREES
Fe3mEMFEARLMBSEMSH
EFBHED - R_ZETLFE+ZARX
B fEBEERBEAIBEAERMAA -
BEFREREERMAL BTN
F—A—BR BTHBARZERR
K A33%HEZE25% °

REMBEER (BREEE) ELZREA
WA RA R ZRITHEGFE

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

8. TAXATION (Continued)

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from
17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009.
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007:
|7.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year No tax is
payable on the profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since the

assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are entitled to an
exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first two years
commencing from first profit making year of operations and
thereafter, the subsidiaries are entitled to a 50% relief from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for the following three years. The reduced tax
rate for the relief period is at 25% (2007: nil). No PRC Enterprise
Income Tax has been provided for after taking these tax incentives

into account. These tax incentives will be expired by the year 2012.

On |6 March 2007, the People's Republic of China promulgated the
Law of the People's Republic of China of Enterprise Income Tax (the
“New Law") by Order No. 63 of the President of the People's
Republic of China. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate from

33% to 25% for certain subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions including Hong Kong is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

9. FFEHIE

9. LOSS FORTHE YEAR

2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$'000
REEBEE MR Loss for the year has been arrived
THRERER : at after charging:
e Directors’ emoluments 4,191 2915
Hih B TRA Other staff costs 27,964 22,934
H b g 8RR Other staff's retirement benefits
& &R scheme contributions 959 960
33,114 26,809
BV EESH Amortisation of intangible assets
GTAHERAR) (included in cost of sales) 4,900 4,900
Z & 6D B & Auditor’s remuneration 2,800 3,500
BRARRAX 2 FEKAE Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 149,951 105,82 |
ME BERREBZHE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9,627 6,549
HEME - BE K Loss on disposal of property,
HEEE plant and equipment 276 95
FIMREFZ Minimum lease payments under
S Tiikopd operating leases in respect
EN&EHRE of land and buildings 7,205 4,697
RRE B Allowance for doubtful debts 11,441 26,340
BRETERE Allowance for obsolete inventories 12,738 38,723
JIE Wi Bk & X R SRIE Allowance for amounts due from associates 17,837 1,854
ERRAEREBEFHE Net exchange loss recognised — 6,478
REt A and crediting;
B #5 BY Government grants 339 —
HE WA Rental income 1,292 [.190
FEWA Interest income 4,971 2220
BHRRE N W58 Net exchange gain recognised 996 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2007:

ten) directors were as follows:

2008
M e
Other emoluments
HER RAEA
EfpRA FEER

Salaries  Retirement

2007
M e
Other emoluments
ek BiEA
b RA FHER

Salaries  Retirement

#i€  and other benefits scheme it #&  and other benefits scheme @it

Fees benefits contribution Total Fees benefits contribution Total

T T T T T T T T

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000

REL? W Yansheng* = = = = — — — —
2/ Liang Xiaohong* — — — — — — — -
BHE Han Shuwang — 1,704 — 1,704 = 1,125 = 1125
IRR Wang Xiaodong = 1262 2 1274 = 995 2 1,007
£ 7 Li Guang = 913 — 913 — 583 — 583
RIIA Wu Jiang" — — — — — — - -
EHE Tang Guohong = = = — — — — —
FEEA Wang Dechen” 100 - - 100 - - - -
BEE, Kan Lai Kuen, Alice” 100 - - 100 - - - —
RERN Gordan Ng" 100 = - 100 = - = =
IHE4 Moh Kwen Yung# — = — = 50 — = 50
Rt Zhu Shixiong# — — — — 50 — = 50
A Wang Fai, Philip# — — — — 50 — — 50
HhEEs Yiu Ying Wal = = = = 50 = - 50
2% Total 300 3879 12 4191 200 2703 12 2915
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10.EEREENE &

(a) E% (&)

# ZEEFEREE_TTN\Ft+=
A=+ —HLEFEREIE -

N HSEFERBE-TENS
+-ASt+-ALFEEE
-

© REEFERBE-TRLAT
A=t BLEEREE -

BEEENBE-TTN\E+-F

St BLEFERECAHFN (=T
TLEH) -

FAFCEREFAFERREARE
Flz E—4FTEaL -

(b) AfimEHMES

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors (Continued)

# These directors resigned during the year ended 31 December
2008.

These directors were appointed during the year ended 3|
December 2008.

*  These directors resigned during the year ended 3| December
2007.

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 3|
December 2008 (2007: Nil).

The salaries for the year included salaries for the year and

bonuses relating to the preceding year determined in the year.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

IfuGeRFMEERE=M((Z22 The five highest paid individuals included three (2007: three)
tF Z)EF - -MU(ZTZTL directors. The emoluments of the two highest paid individuals
F:Z)ReaFMEEZHe M were as follows:
T
2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$:000
He hEMERN Salaries and other benefits 1,826 |,368
AR AE T 5T &4t R Retirement benefits scheme contribution —_ 24
1,826 1,392

MEAZN T LR /MRS 5 E
EBAZEFEFHELERSR
1,000,000% 7T °

The aggregate emoluments paid to each of the above two
highest paid individuals for both years did not exceed
HK$1,000,000.
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11.58 8

BE-TB)\F+-A=+-BL%
B R AR B SRR B 4 R
B EEE R AR IR B
£(ZETLE 8 -

12.8RGE-EX

N T%@Hxh*ﬁ‘/\fEZtHxﬁm’éﬁ
BLERTISIES

pul|

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

11.DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 3|
December 2008, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
balance sheet date (2007: nil).

12.LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the following
data.

2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETESREAREIEZERE  Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share (499,626) (573,901)
RO EE

Number of shares

2008 2007
REFAEBRERERE 2 Weighted average number of shares for

MEFHE RO EE the purposes of basic loss per share 3,623,995,668 [,572,198,568

BE-_ZZ+tF+-A=-+—HFEW
BEIRMH 2 METFHHEREUATR
03B T2 BERR-_ZZLF+ALH
R 2 406,855,905[% B% 17 K E e i Ft /8
NAmMAER087TB T ZEBRETLZ
2,200,000,0004% A% {2 1E H # % -

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2007 had been adjusted for the effect of open
offer of 406,855,905 offer shares at a price of HK$0.35 per offer
share issued in October 2007; and the effect of 2,200,000,000 shares

issued for acquisition of subsidiaries at a price of HK$0.87 per share.
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13.555M%

I3.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$000
DY E FAIR VALUE

INEZE) At beginning of the year 21,000 —
BREAME BMENERE Transferred from property, plant and equipment — 13,686
BE 38 2 Exchange adjustment 1,800 592

ERNGEBEERER (Decrease) increase in fair value recognised in the
Z A Of ) 12 0 consolidated income statement (2,280) 6,722
NS At end of the year 20,520 21,000

LA EFHEENREMEM
R BRI -

AEBR-_ZZENFTA=+—HZ
REMEFATEREASEWEREE L
BUEERBEGEMENRTMITE
BRAFRE B#ETE o F IR AT
BERATRAMEMAESEE  HARME
B ETHUMERECEEERRK
R - ZBEMER2ZHBRIE
UMEZTHRSEREED -

AEBERBERES RS2 KEHER
BRFHEERBEEMNZAAENE #a
BEAFERNFE AP RRENE
WIAREDEAR

The above investment property is located in Shenzhen, the PRC

under medium lease term.

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 3|1 December
2008 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Knight Frank
Petty Limited is a member of the Institute of Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar

properties in Shenzhen, the PRC.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/
DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF

mE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BE %% DL H KER
BELH REE  HERER BER #az
NE* Plant, Wind I8 B
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds ~ Furniture nE
land and and plant and and  and office Motor 4g
buildings ~ machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles Total
T T T T T T T
HK$ 000 HKS000 AK$000 AK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
s cosT
RZ3%t5-F-A At | January 2007 12,181 Rk - 3044 18617 4307 7280
ES Bichange adjustments I3l 205 - 159 i 12l 1764
Em Addtions = 559 = = 538 1993 3086
WENE Acquired on acquition of
RAKER subsidaries - 564 - - - 1337 1901
BRERENZ LY Revaluztion of land and
REFZE(R buldings upon transfer to
investment property 1864 = = = = = 1864
BRERENZ Trensferred to investment
property (13974) = = = = = (13974)
te Digposs - - - 6l (1,14 (1208 0419
RZSELETZA=T—H  At3l December 2007 20) 31302 - 314 18310 6,350 65,506
ER#EE Bichange adjustments 18 31 - I3 46l Bz 4145
S Addtions - 1,584 58,633 148 1446 4775 67,586
KENEAARER Acquired on acquistion
of subsidiaries 1265 949 198,638 - 434 140 459
te Digposs - (136) - - 365) ) 581
WZZENFTZA=T—H  At3l December 2008 12872 50147 157271 3905 1799 12,066 353873
ik DEPRECIATION
RZ3%t5--A At | January 2007 360 12014 - 1,565 13230 13 1401
El#E Bxchange adjustments 7 73 - 76 9 B 98
RERE Provided for the year 9 4118 - 57 1,065 B! 6549
BREZRENERAS Elminated on transfer to
investrment praperty (268) — — - - - (268)
HERIn Elminated on disposels - - - t) (629 (1040 (1676)
RZZBLEFZA=T-HB  At3l December 2007 88 16,845 - 200 13,766 1,985 34,904
Ep#EE Bxchange adjustments 8 876 - 155 205 ) 1,306
RERE Provided for the year 8 5799 944 40 1151 1,265 9611
b Fiined on dipsds - () - - a7 ) (125)
RZZENETZA=T—H  At3I December 2008 164 8348 944 1175 14,149 33 461
REFE CARRYING VALUES
RZSENETZA=T-A  At3l December 2008 12,708 26799 256307 750 388 8834 309261
RZZBLEFZA=T-B  At3l December 2007 (14 20457 - b 454 4565 30602
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149 % - BERREWEY
X BERRERZMTZ

& @)
L EEME - BERZEZEHE N
BERERATERFE -
HELHE 4-5%kEmHBniEE
BT H o ARG E AL
WE - BB 9-15%

R i 28
B NEERE 5 15%

K&
HBARTA 25%
RER 10 — 25%
WAERME

= 18 — 25%

AEBEAZMERERNTEREE
REFEAD -

WEME BERIEAINz2ES
148,643,000 7L (= T T £ F
105,526,000/ 75) * Jh—Ki B 2 7] 5t M
ERNZERREBEINNERS - HE
RACFEASHRERRRASGES

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and 4 - 5% or over the unexpired lease
buildings terms, whichever is shorter
Plant, equipment and 9-15%
machinery
Wind energy plant and 5-15%
equipment
Moulds and tools 25%
Furniture and office 10 - 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 18 - 25%

The Group's property interests shown above were held under

medium term leases in the PRC.

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
HK$ 148,643,000 (2007: HK$105,526,000) represent deposits paid
for acquisition of wind energy generators and machineries by a
subsidiary. The subsidiary is engaged in the implementation of wind

power field in Inner Mongolia, PRC.
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15. 7 & 15.GOODWILL
F#ET
HK$'000
2N COST
RZZEZ+F-H-BAR At | January 2007 and
— T+ F+-_A=1+—H 31 December 2007 3210
W s BT /8 2 =) (BT #E30) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30) 8,548
- NE+=-RB=+—H At 3| December 2008 [1,758
wAE IMPAIRMENT
R-_ZFF+F—HA—H At | January 2007,
—2ELFF_A=+—HK 31 December 2007 and
—EENF+-_A=1+—H 31 December 2008 3,210
IREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZEZENF+=-_A=+—H At 3| December 2008 8,548

R-_EZLtF+-A=+—H

At 3| December 2007

BANPH IO A - AR R E A %i‘“ﬁ?ﬂ As explained in note 6, the Group uses business segments as its

EREBRBBHNEN T BER - primary segment for reporting segment information. For the

BRSNS  EROAGAFHNFED purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with indefinite useful lives

’\EEE“ IR EEEN - Tﬁ'ﬁ%fi’\\: has been allocated to the individual cash generating units (“CGUs").

ENF+ZA=T—BOREZEE The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2008 allocated
ME’\JP@-@%EE@TE : to these units are as follows:

2008 2007

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

5 &< Operation of wind power field 1,968 —

EMm T ERER Manufacture of REPM products 6,580 —

8,548 —
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15%% (%) 15.GOODWILL (Continued)

REELEM 2 Y E S8 THR6E R
HEEET EREEMEIIERR
DEARERE - ERXREHEER
ERRAZEHAR - EEEXRBRHA
HEERGEEHERAE RREBERERSR
SELBURTRAR IREM GG -
BREDROIEEREARE - EER
BERRAZEIREEEMEREY
Mg RKREE -

FAAREERARIRMBERER
BB BEENGHZRERERRNA
B2 REAEHNE MRZBEARNE
BEMAECOFHMG  RASEERE
EHLTERERZIDBIMREEINTNR
5% REE  URREBEHERRES
ELXBURERR ZAAMGHE - &
RAEBWNTRERER  BGEE
REMTEREMMNEREDHIR3.5%
520% - AFEHUNZRERERRE
R E35%EH R - BEEREEM
ZEBRZEMAEED BT EKK
HEEBREREERE - FR - FEANK
BHBLAREL HBY ERZDNERS
B

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in
use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU.The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past

practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for
goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the financial
budgets which was prepared by using the most recent financial
results with projections approved by management covering a 5-year
period at discount rates of | |.7% for operation of wind power field
and |5% for manufacture of REPM products, which reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGUs. The growth rates for operation of wind power field
and manufacture of REPM products are 3.5% and 20% respectively, in
light of the Group's industry growth forecasts. Cashflows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3.5%.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. No impairment loss
was recognised in relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of

subsidiaries during the year.
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HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Rifi R
BEEA AR
Development  Technology B
costs license right Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A& COST
RZEZ+E-HA-BRK At | January 2007 and
—EE+E+ZA=1+—H 31 December 2007 8,618 35,100 43718
% Write off (8619) _ (8,619)
RZEZENF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2008 — 35,100 35,100
BHERAE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
R-ZEZ+E—-H—H At | January 2007 8,618 25,300 33918
AEEEH Amortised for the year — 4900 4900
RZZEZENF-H—H At | January 2008 8,618 30,200 38818
AEEEH Amortised for the year — 4900 4900
S 3H Eliminated on write off (8,618) — (8618)
RZZENFE+=A=+—H At 3| December 2008 — 35,100 35,100
REFE CARRYING VALUES
RZEZNF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2008 — — —
RZZEZLE+-A=1—H At 3| December 2007 4900 — 4,900

BREEDR T HERAERES
i

RN 3E5F
BT T A 3%

FERATDHANBELE -

RITEENAE (ERETERD HE)
EE=FER-

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the

following periods:

Development costs

Technology license right

3 -5 years

3 years

Development costs are internally generated.

Technology license right, which includes the right of distribution of

broadband products, was acquired from third party.
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17 RBEAT ZER

I7.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2008 2007

FET FE T

HK$°000 HK$000

FEETREZKAN Cost of unlisted investments 164,790 170,384
BE 5 38 2 Exchange adjustments 23,295 8,755
FEME U205 7 - MBKRARE  Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend 23,741 916
EiEEEFE Share of net assets 211,826 180,055
B ERZREER Less: Impairment loss recognised — (9,227)
211,826 170,828

EETHRERABER_STLFRAMK
B EARMESLZHE9,227,000
ATRRZ_ZENFARALE KM
BRAIMEEZHERAENES ZH
2426,0008 7T (ZZ T4 : 426,000
) c ZESLEMEAZHEFIERAR
BHEARAEEEZTESHRETR
EMEERERMETES A RKEAR
ZEAARREXNE LA -

R-TTLF AEERBNB L AT
1 21 2 FR H 2 2 8 /2 &5 18 9,227,0007%
7 © AU (B & RE R X FER B B AR A
IRH - KHESEE2ERNE TR
lﬂiﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁZﬁ%
FEmELGT  A2RAEER
ﬁaATZ AFEEZHEEZZ
tE+ A=+ -—HIERHBREXRE

@A%Ia]f‘»%iﬂﬂ*
_I%FFF

o

FR o ANEBEYE—FEERRDIEM
%%ﬁ%i%%ﬁ@Aﬂ”lﬁ%?”
MEINER  RAEEBO%ZHEB R
7 FEBEHRKE0 At - REEQ
AMEREASERABRTRESE
9,227,000 T EE R EEH B A R E
Z—E M .

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
HK$9,227,000 arising on the acquisition of an associate in 2007 and
goodwill of HK$426,000 (2007: HK$426,000) arising on change of
status of an associate as a result of deemed disposal of a subsidiary
in 2006. The goodwill which arose in 2007 was mainly attributable to
the substantial increase in the share price of the Company between
the date when the issue price of the consideration shares for the
purpose of the acquisition pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreements entered into by the Group was determined by the

contracting parties and the date of the acquisition.

The Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$9,227,000 in
relation to the carrying amount of the interests in the associate in
2007. The recoverable amount was determined based on fair value
less costs to sell calculation estimated by the directors by reference
to the fair value of the associate determined by the contracting
parties at the date when the sale and purchase agreement was
entered into by the Group, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of the associate had not changed significantly
from that date to 3| December 2007.

During the year, the Group acquired additional interest in an
associate, Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Wan Yuan"), which became a 49% owned subsidiary, with
details set out in note 30. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the
interest in an associate and related accumulated impairment loss of
HK$9,227,000 had been transferred as part of consideration for

acquisition of a subsidiary.
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1T RBHEATIZHER &)

AEEEFELIBRRAEEERERRAZE

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

I7.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss of an

B-AEERBERERZEEBRER

AERE BEaAEBERQT
B @F:

associate. The amount of unrecognised share of loss of the associate,

25K extracted from the relevant management account of the associate,

both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AERFRERZEMH Unrecognised share of (loss) profit
BERE (BE) &2 of associate for the year (1,260) 97
Rt RERZEh Accumulated unrecognised share
BERAIER of loss of an associate (79,655) (78,395)

AEEBERRZHATBEERMT -

associates is set out below:

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

2008 2007

FET TFET

HK$’000 HK$'000

B ERE Total assets 3,980,907 3,349,811

EERARE Total liabilities 2,921,713 2,680,125

BEFE Net assets 1,059,194 669,686
AEEEGHERRZ Group's share of net assets

BEFE of associates 211,400 170,402

WA Revenue 470,360 182,294

ANEZ % A Profit for the year 149,783 21,905

REBREGBE N A EE Group's share of results of associates 29,371 2,721

Details of the principal associates of the Group at 3| December
2008 are set out in note 35.
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1 RERERHERZER I8.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES

2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

HRZEHEB LD Cost of unlisted investments in jointly controlled
TxéﬁX$ LR AR R entities, net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,716,789 1,716,789
B Exchange adjustments 106,457 —
AW RER - RURE Share of post-acquisitions profits, net of dividend 25,407 —
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,848,653 1,716,789
B ERRZBEERE Less: Impairment loss recognised (898,958) (474,793)
949,695 1,241,996

FLETREXABESRINR-ZZLF
AhEELREHEEmMEE 2B S
1,155,343,000% = (= 2 & £ F
1,155,343,000) - T T+ FEMEE
LEBIEZHRNEGNEARAEEES
EERZETKEMEERERNET
BEEARKBACEARRREANREL
FFTEK o

REAFEE  AEBEBEARE T ERER
ERETHRR EAEZCREERE
19,153,000 = (= & T £ &

474,793,000/ 70) © A W Bl & B IR A
BEMESE  AEAURBMMESTE
NEBLRZEHEREEREEERRE
BReBRITMETHZTHEEIN2%E
13% @ st AR EEEBERRE £ RFE
HEBZHAARESRENRE - B
Bt - AR AT Uk Bl & BB 2 AR FE R
BRI EEABNERAREBSE -

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
HK$1,155,343,000 (2007: HK$I,155,343,000) arising on the
acquisition of jointly controlled entities in 2007. The goodwill which
arose in 2007 was mainly attributable to the substantial increase in
the share price of the Company between the date when the issue
price of the consideration shares for the purpose of the acquisition
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreements entered into by the
Group was determined by the contracting parties and the date of

the acquisition.

During the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$19,153,000 (2007: HK$474,793,000) in relation to the carrying
amounts of certain interests in certain jointly controlled entities. The
recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculation by
estimating the Group’s share of the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the jointly controlled
entities, using discount rates ranging from 2% to 13% in both years
which reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the jointly controlled entities. Thus,
the excess of the carrying amount of these interests in jointly
controlled entities over the recoverable amount is recognised as an

impairment loss.
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1.REFEFNERZES @ I8.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

RZZZNF  AEETHIEBAR The Group also recognised an impairment loss of HK$405,012,000
REtER  BBMABRTALEAS in 2008 (2007: nil) in relation to the carrying amount of the interest
REHERRAAER CKEERES in a jointly controlled entity, Nantong CASC Wanyuan Acciona Wind
18405,012,0008 T (Z 2T +F : T) - Turbine Manufacture Corporation Ltd., which is under disputes
ERRECERHEERABRKEE between joint venture partners with respect to its business
2EF - -AEERERAMRNAELEEH operations. It is currently the intention of the Group to dispose of
HERKRZEHERZETRE 58 certain its equity interest in that jointly controlled entity to the joint
FEREETEN - AKESEELTF venture partner and currently negotiations are being conducted
BERLEXRAMEL @ L HERERE among the relevant parties. The recoverable amount is determined
EEGHBEEFEZ ROEMER based on fair values less costs to sell, estimated by the directors by
reference to the carrying value of the underlying net assets
attributable to the Group.
BENENGREASERAEZAEHE The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
R P2 B 88 2 B B 7% B R E T 40 jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group's interest which
T are accounted for using equity method is set out below:
2008 2007
FET TE T
HK$’000 HK$:000
mE & E Current assets 494,302 679,548
ERBEE Non-current assets 160,836 145,003
RBE & Current liabilities (351,441) (590,398)
BEFE Net assets 303,697 234,153
KA Income 1,256,821 [,405,664
% Expenses (1,191,706) (1,383,287)
RE i A Profit for the year 65,115 22,377
AEER-_ZEENF+_A=+—-B2 Details of the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group at 31
TRAAEHERFBHNHIEIG - December 2008 are set out in note 35.
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19.%58 19.INVENTORIES

2008 2007
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
[R M ¥ Raw materials 16,757 8,330
ER M Work-in-progress 13,561 3,580
IR m Finished goods 24,922 12,957
55,240 24867

208 5 & H i FEUE R 20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

EOREMERTDIEE ZEKK
41,910,000 © (= T T £ &

61,869,000 7T) - AKBEGLTERF T
HHEEHHHEEE R RIZERE
EEMBATERIERPERDE—
FRAKE - BHEKRREER 2R

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$41,910,000 (2007: HK$61,869,000). The Group allows credit
periods for 90 days on average to its customers for sales of goods
and rendering of services. At the discretion of the directors, several
major customers were allowed to settle their balances beyond the
credit terms up to one year. The following is an aged analysis of trade

AT receivables at the balance sheet date:
2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
30A A Within 30 days 29,246 9,327
31£90H Between 31 - 90 days 8,090 9,801
9121808 Between 91 - 180 days 3,361 36,491
1812 365H Between 181 - 365 days — 4,880
iR —F Over | year 1,213 1,370
41,910 61,869

AEBrESRUAREHBEREAE
4,574,000 T2 BIEFR (ZE T
F 1 41,371,00087T) * ZERKERER
SHEHBRE mMASEHABERES
B ASBUTRERSHEBIEME
R ZERIKER 2 FHERE R180H
(ZEZ 4 : 180H) °

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,574,000 (2007: HK$41,371,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
180 days (2007: 180 days).
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20E S R HMEWR &

BEAMEREEZE S ERRH KRN
T

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

2008 2007

FET TET

HK$°000 HK$'000

91£180H Between 91 - 180 days 3,361 36,491
181£365H Between 181 - 365 days — 4,880
i —F Over | year 1,213 —
D Total 4,574 41,371

AEE—REBHAAERE365R M EKR
F28BE  EREBERR  %FH
#1365 0 0B IGK — R BRI E - HEE
HERTRREENZETIRERPK
A

The Group will normally provide fully for all receivables overdue 365
days because historical experience is such that receivables that are
past due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for some
major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the

directors.

AREBEHNOT Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE A Balance at beginning of the year 127,223 100,883

BZREWNAZBEERAERBE Impairment losses recognised in

respect of trade receivables 11,441 26,340
F IR AR Balance at end of the year 138,664 127,223

REBBEBIEAEIEE, RINER
BASEYBEEARSHOEFRENE
FRBER - AREYLERZZERT
AEMER®

REMNERFELH  AEREZZHEHK
et EEEPZEEERERAER
FPZEERBE -BTEFIRELZE
BREABLERETTHR - AKHE
EHBMERREZEERLDS  90% (=
FELF  31%) BSRIKFEEEA LT
ERE -

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
and have no material transactions with the Group during the year

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s marketing team
would assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 90%
(2007: 31%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have the best credit history managed by the Group's

marketing team.
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20.

21.

22,

BESRHEMEKR &)

REZE BT ARNEB 2 5 e Yk 46
BREAETHEBARRE (ZETLF :
/N Tﬂx%zzsoooo%n(_@«?t
£ : 34,637,000) Z 3K~ 49,719,000
T (ZZZ L4 : 263,752,000 7T) 2 fE
W—RERZEHEBZRS ARG —
BEARaE 2 MBARBERME &
$42,393,0008 L (ZEE L5 : T) -
ZEEFBEARERN  £EREHE
BR—FMNFE -

R FEHEAE AT

ZREREK EAMAHREREES
RAB (THR) REMEBARZHEA -
LR & P AR 2 P B 2 )

ZEFEREBER 2EREBEREER

HABR o

e FE(T B E A TR
R-ZEZN\F+-A=+—8 B B
BN RIFAEEE  fBRIRERERE -
Eé:zzﬁtﬁJr—ﬂer—El + R W B
ERNAREEEEENEEFEL TN

675%;%25 250,000 L (ZEZEN
F ) % 32,446,000 7T (ZEE N

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21

Included in the Group’s other receivable balances at the balance
sheet date are advance to minority shareholder of a subsidiary
(2007: shareholder of associates) of HK$2,280,000 (2007:
HK$34,637,000), a dividend receivable from a jointly controlled
entity of HK$49,719,000 (2007: HK$263,752,000) and deposits on
purchase of materials for a subsidiary in Inner Mongolia of
HK$42,393,000 (2007: nil). The amounts are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and expected to be settled within one year.

.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED

COMPANIES

The amounts represent amounts due from/to China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited (“CASIL") and its subsidiaries. CASIL
is a subsidiary of CASC.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

At 31 December 2008, the amounts due from/to are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2007, amounts due from associates included an
amount of HK$5,250,000 (2008: nil) and HK$32,446,000 (2008: nil)
which carried fixed interest at 5.7% and 6.75% per annum

respectively and were repaid during the year. The remaining amounts

FoE)ZRE BERERER -#T2 were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
BRELR 28REANR-—FRNEER
FEUHERNA Rz BEEBRED Movement in the allowance for amounts due from associates:
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EXUE Balance at beginning of the year 17,498 15,644
JENEEE RAIRZ B Impairment losses recognised
e SR R B /&S 18 in respect of amounts due from associates 17,837 ,854
F RS Balance at end of the year 35,335 17,498
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23$RITHER CHBRITHE 23.BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
=

RMITEE CHRITER Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

RITAERIZ0.36%E1.17% 2 T i5F Fi X Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range
(ZTT+F  1%Z1.6%) it 5 - B from 0.36% to 1.17% (2007: 1% to 1.5%) per annum. The pledged
HETIR0.36% 2 EEFENE (ZES+ deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.36% (2007: 2.75%) per annum.
F:275%) 8 EERBIERER The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
RERTAEEEBRTHERER relevant bank facilities granted to the Group.

24.8 5 K B th FE =% 24.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
BORAEMERNROEESRMNR Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
40,108,000 = ( = T & ‘t F o HK$40,108,000 (2007: HK$13,835,000). The following is an aged
13,835,000 7T) - EHENRNEE H analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date:

ZRESHMWT :
2008 2007
FET TE T
HK$’000 HK$000
30H A Within 30 days 20,476 5214
31290H Between 31 - 90 days 5,924 1,520
91£180H Between 91 - 180 days 2,166 3,697
181£365H Between 181 - 365 days 1,933 385
il —F Over | year 9,609 3,019
40,108 13,835
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25.15 8 25.BORROWINGS
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$000
RITRBER (HzE1) Short term bank loan (note /) 45,600 —
BREEEHER (K 7t2) Short term shareholder's loans (note 2) 125,000 43,050
Hin B E R (f:3) Short term other loan (note 3) — 92,130
BREREER (ffzt4) Long term shareholder's loans (note 4) 486,210 447,825
Hith REIE R (f17£5) Long term other loans (note 5) 104,880 —
761,690 583,005

B ARRBEEMER Less: Amount due within one year

—FREBEZHRE under current liabilities (170,600) (135,180)
—F1& 32 FR Amount due after one year 591,090 447,825

AEEEEZHHBBRAOT : The maturity of the Group's borrowings

is as follows:

BNEER s —F R On demand or within one year 170,600 135,180
—FEWF Between one to two years — —
MEERF Between two to five years 486,210 447,825
HiEnF Over five years 104,880 —
761,690 583,005
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25188 »)

X

ZRBEEERRTERARE
40,000,0007T (=TT L4 : £) ° KIE
BREEEAE531%: 8 c REZR -
AEEETHE BERZBEEEDE
53,410,0008 T (ZZ T+ F : &) H#H
FRITUESEERE -

R-ZEENF+-_A=+—HBA2ZHE\EHE
Astrotech#: ¥ 35,000,000/ & (Z 2 &
+F : ) 290,000,000 T (=TT +
F &) HRREEFEEGF558%K
6%iTE - ZERAREERAREN_ZT
NEBHEE -

RZZEZ+F+ZA=+—HBZHHEHE
B NCET B 2 5B R A2 B 2 AL AR R
RUBEREBERR ([MAMBESB])
(FAXTA) BN ZRBEARE
41,000,0007C * ZHIBEREER - BEF
MEE10%F B RERFATBHERE -

RZET+F+-A=+—HFAZR
BHPERRIELDR (P2
EHBRR]) 214 268,742,000/ 5K IE
57,531,000 7t (£ ¥ % 5046,800,000
% 70 546,000,000% 7T) * 2B R AEEK
o ZFEFIEL25%: B - EAFIESD
Al 511,942,000 T3¢ 1,631,000 7T, *
TR RE B o 82 T 50IE 33,388,000
54,280,000k TRIEEE=FZ R
BER o FilFrE EH (Bt Al 2K
BEREZE-TTNF+=-_A=+—H8L
FRENEER - & A S 13,888,000/
TERZZEENF+ZA=+—HitA
H i JEAF K o

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

25.BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

The amount represents secured bank loan of RMB40,000,000 (2007:
nil). The amount bears fixed interest at 5.31% per annum. Certain
property, plant and equipment of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$53,410,000 (2007: nil) at the balance sheet date was pledged to

the bank to secure the credit facilities.

The amounts at 3| December 2008 represent loans advanced from
Astrotech of HK$35,000,000 (2007: nil) and HK$90,000,000 (2007: nil)
which carry fixed interest at 5.58% per annum and 6% per annum

respectively. The loans are unsecured and repayable in full in 2009.

The amount at 31 December 2007 represented RMB41,000,000 loan
advanced from CALT through CASC's subsidiary, Aerospace Science &
Technology Finance Co., Ltd (“*ASTF"), as the trustee. The amount was
unsecured, interest-bearing at 5.1% per annum and was fully repaid

during the year

Included in the amount at 31 December 2007 was an advance from
China Great Wall Industry Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CASC amounting to HK$58,742,000 or US$7,531,000, which included
advances of HK$46,800,000 or US$6,000,000 that were unsecured,
interest-bearing at 4.25% per annum and the respective accrued
interests of HK$ 11,942,000 or US$1,531,000 which was unsecured and
interest bearing. The remaining amount of HK$33,388,000 or
US$4,280,000 represented a non-interest bearing loan from a third
party. All the above loans (other than the accrued interest) were repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2008 and the accrued interest of
HK$13,888,000 was included under other payables at 3| December
2008.

F 3} Annual Report 2008

105



& BB R R M BT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_TTN\GF+_A=1—HI*E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

25.88 (#)

25.BORROWINGS (Continued)

ZAIBIE BN B B AR (fE
AXTAN)BRAZMEER & #
486,210,000/ 7t 3k A R # 426,500,000
J0) (ZZZ£F : 447,825,000/ L3 A
R #426,500,0007T) °

A RRERR - REEFH E5.04%
E6%tRRAR T ——FERHEE -

ZRBER—FEHBARLBRRBR
Z AR #92,000,0007T (=B E A F -
&) ZEH - ZFBRAEER  REESF

4. The amounts represent two loans advanced from CALT through ASTF
as the trustee totalling HK$486,210,000 or RMB426,500,000 (2007:
HK$447,825,000 or RMB426,500,000).

The amounts are unsecured, bears fixed interest at 5.04% to 6% per

annum and are repayable in 201 .

5. The amount represent a loan of RMB92,000,000 (2007: nil) advanced
from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,

bears fixed interest at 7.05% per annum and is repayable in full in

FE7.05%F ERER_E_TF+— November 2020.
AEHEE -
26 .DEFERRED TAXATION

26.EEHIE

ARBERIACEXNEEREAE (B

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

E)WT o recognised by the Group.
ng  REARE HELA
HERE HAUR NREfR AR EEA
Accelerated  Technology Revaluation HEER Undistributed
tax license of Tax profits of ag
depreciation right  properties losses  subsidiaries Total
FET  FET  TAn  TER FET  TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZLE-A-H  At! January 2007 152 1715 — (1,867) — —
BRk (E%) i (Credit) charge to income
statement (28) (858) 681 886 — 1681
NEERFEHL Charge to property
revaluation reserve = 465 = = 465
RIEZLE At 31 December 2007 124 857 2,146 (981) — 2146
tZA=t+-H
BRk (E%) i (Credit) charge to income
statement (26) (808) (570) 835 5812 5243
kS 2 Effect of change in tax rate 0 (49) - 5 — —
RIBENE At 31 December 2008
T-A=t+-H 9 576 (90) 5812 7,389
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26 EEHIE 2

R-ZEZN\E+-_F=+—0 ~&E
B R B A 8 5 18 49346,826,0007%8 7T
(ZZZ 4 : 299,495,000/ 70) A EIK
HEEZ RN HERZBEBELLD
545,000/ 7L (ZFZ 4 : 5,606,000/
TO) BRELEREEE - BRREGRTH
emFERR  WREREKD
346,281,000 T (= T T £ F
293,889,000/ 7t.) < Fi 1B E BB RIE T
MIEEE - RAERHIEEHE221,055,000
BIL(ZTZTHF 178,995,000 7T) A
TERALEE  -HBRAERNEEREG
REFANEE -

RZZEZNE+_A=+—H ' ~£H
A AR S K = 5875,328,000/8 0 (=
TET L4 63,324,00087T) ° AR A
AR E SRR AB B ARG =
BHOMERLUNRERE=ERARL
BMIEEE o

REFBEFHRE BT NE—F—
A8 BB BB EUS F S kA
BRERZHWENT - EBZSHEM
BRAARSREEMNERER ZEERE
5,812,000/ U B {E H 45 ©

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

26 .DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2008, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$346,826,000 (2007: HK$299,495,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$545,000 (2007:
HK$5,606,000) of such tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$346,281,000 (2007: HK$293,889,000) due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$221,055,000 (2007: HK$178,995,000) that may be carried
forward indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will

expire within five years.

At 31 December 2008, the Group has deductible temporary
difference of HK$75,328,000 (2007: HK$63,324,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can be

utilised.

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of
HK$5,812,000 has been provided in respect of temporary
differences attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC

subsidiaries.
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27.1x & 27.SHARE CAPITAL
BB EE BRAEE
Number of shares Amount
TET
HK$000

FREBE10B T EBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

ATE Authorised:

R-_ZET+F—-H—-H " At | January 2007, 31 December 2007

TR EFA=+—BR and 3| December 2008
—ZEEN\FF+HA=1+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000

BEETRER Issued and fully paid:

RZZET+F—-H—H At | January 2007 1,017,139,763 101,714
REFET Issue during the year 406,855,905 40,686
W B /B8 A A Acquisition of subsidiaries 2,200,000,000 220,000

R-ZZZt+E+-_A=+—H At 3| December 2007 and

R—_ZZENF+-_A=+—H 31 December 2008 3,623,995,668 362,400
et Note:

1. RBE_ZTLF+-_A=+—RItF I. During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company allotted and
B -AmERRAERERAHEE AR issued 406,885,905 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at the price of
A0 T 2 BREZERETERE HK$0.35 as a result of open offer to the then existing shareholders.
60.107% T 2 406,885,905/% & @ A% -

2. RBE-_ZTLFT_A=t+—HIF 2. During the year ended 3| December 2007, the Company allotted and
- AR R E YR — B8 2 R A 0.87% issued 2,200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at the price of
T EREERETEREEI10ET HK$0.87 for the acquisition of a subsidiary (also see note 30).

2.2,200,000,0000% & @ % (R FI£30) °
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28. 54 EE

AEEERRELN  BRAKEAEZA
REEARERE  ARTEBRERLAR

EREaz FaAmARRFRESER -

ARBEBRBELZFRETE -

AREZERRECENKE2HREZ
BERAAREDREEARGES (B
BERTRARFEERREER)

AEBEERBTEHRAEARE - BR
BEREAKAREESEEARAER RN
A/\'fé ﬂ $1ﬁ] %mézlx *%

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

28.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from

prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 25 and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves

and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall

capital structure.
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20.&FTH

29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ERTRER Categories of financial instruments
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$000
TREE Financial assets
B e Y BR 5 Loans and receivables
(BREERREEEY) (including cash and cash equivalents) 413,976 614,127
*RAR Financial liabilities
# 55 X AR Amortised cost 860,684 640,659
SHMEREEEERBR Financial risk management objectives and policies
AEEZIECRIABREES REHM The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other

rWM‘ﬁW/ﬁ#@LQTM‘EW
SEMBEARR  BEARTER
ﬁﬁm%&ﬁ@‘%%&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%m
REF - BHRAZEEeRIAZHBER
EWFAKE BHEZTEHIAZR
BREEEZERB ZBRESENTX B
BEEELRERZERER  UBREHE
REBBMZBEEREE -

CRIAHAEBE ARERERE

E-EHEEERERZERAR - B
REERFEEARZHEERE - N&E
A zEERR  RBHESRERRT
SREKESEERGFERR 2 H AT

receivables, amounts due from/to related companies, amounts due
from/to associates, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure
to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 3|
December 2008 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has formulated a credit policy and
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables by customers, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers spread across diverse industries and

geographical areas.

In addition, the management has considered the strong financial
background and good creditability of the related companies and the
associates, hence, there is no significant credit risk on these

receivables from related companies.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such

amounts are placed in banks with high credit ratings.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to

variable-rate bank balances (note 23 for details).

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk mainly in
relation to the fixed rate bank balances (note 23 for details),
amounts due from associates (note 22 for details) and borrowings
(note 25 for details).

The Group currently does not have policy on hedging of interest
rate risks. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposures and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk

should the need arise.

In the management's opinion, no sensitivity analysis is presented as
the fluctuation of interest rate on bank balances is considered not

significant.

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposures should need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source
of liquidity. With past history of continuing renewal of loan from
CALT, in the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations

due for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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2.2 T H # 29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
cRHEABEEEERBR (B) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
B E & RFIEE & Liquidity and interest risk tables

& 3]

RRAZ Reiig

Weighted ~ HEXK 8%
average f SMER  123ER EREE ENE Tt REE
effective On  Less than I-3 3 months 1258 Over undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  demand I month  months  tolyear |-5years 5years cashflows  amount

% S T T ST T TER TEx TExL
% HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKFO000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$O000

ZEENE 2008

FiitenaR Non-derivative financial liabilities

EAREMERN Trade and other payables - 18,788 4701 29,646 - - - 93,135 93,135

RFE-E8 Borrowings - fixed rate 56 — — 5,656 205,043 546,552 149,228 906479 761,690

ERBERTR Amounts due to related companies - 4407 - - - - - 4407 4407

ERBERAR Amounts due to associates - | 452 - - - - - 1452 1452
U647 4701 35302 205,043 546,552 149228 1005473 860,684

ZEELE 2007

FiiteRaR Non-derivative financial liabilities

B AREMER Trade and other payables - 19970 19,169 10452 - — — 49591 49591

FE-E8 Borrowings - fixed rate 53 61,239 - 9,020 93486 507289 - 671,034 583,005

ERBERAR Amounts due to related companies - 4407 - - - - - 4407 4407

ERBERAR Amounts due to associates - 365 - - - - - 3656 3656

897 19,169 19471 93486 507,269 = 728688 640,659
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2.2 TH® 29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
SHMEREEBFERBR (8) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
RFE Fair values
CREENRERBBELATE  NRE The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
BRAEREIMIAREBER - £ determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
RAABRENMERH 2 BRATEE based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
e observable current market transactions as input.

BEERR REHKASAGEMBR The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
FZeMEERSREBBECEEAESRL and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
NEEBE - financial statements approximate their fair values.
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30.Ur RE P B 2 T 30.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

ZEENFRAZT LR AEEHS
VEZAEBFREERER ARG
%%oﬂﬁﬁ%%%““ IHERSE
AN20%BE BEITRAEA B2 RKEBEANAR
11,970,000% 7T ( A B ﬁ% 10,500,000
) s IHBREIENIHANERER
R F B 2 = 3 R LK B R R
tRDHE RHEER_TENFLA—
B - REKWEE  AEEEREE
IHEREZGIREEPERM4E &
BEI%ERZERE - Al IS
BET ABARRREE 49% 2 [ B 2 7]

WEZHFBIRAABBEHAEZZEN
FRAT—HZ@EH -

R-ZZBEZENE+A-++H  FEFF
BNz 2ENBARLEEMKXER
B RR (TBREE]) T iHE - WE
ﬁ%@?h%%ﬁbﬁ%mﬁ%%ﬁ@

A ([BRAER])BINSRE BT
& BEREHNE19,456,0008 T (AR
#17,060,0007T) ° BERAEFEEAHH
BEERAEMREHERELRNEES
BESZE - RHGERZTENFEF+Z=A
—BREK - RERMER  BIRAZE
ABRRRHES%ZHBAR - Wi
ZHBHERARRABHA-TENET
—At+HEBZBX

On 27 May 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shanghai STEP Electric Co. Ltd., an independent third party. With
respect to the acquisition of additional 20% issued share capital of an
associate, Jiangsu Wan Yuan for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$11,970,000 (RMB10,500,000). Jiangsu Wan Yuan is principally
engaged in the manufacturing of hi-tech rare-earth permanent
magnet motors for elevator in Jiangsu Province and distribution in
Beijing. The transaction was completed in | July 2008. Upon the
completion of the acquisition, the Group was entitled to appoint up
to four out of seven directors to the board of directors of Jiangsu
Wan Yuan and obtained control over Jiangsu Wan Yuan. Accordingly,
Jiangsu Wan Yuan was accounted for as a 49% owned subsidiary of
the Company. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company's
circular dated Il June 2008.

On 27 October 2008, the Group also entered into an agreement
with Beijing Wan Yuan Science and Technology Corporation (“WY
Science and Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT, for
the acquisition of additional 15% issued share capital of an associate,
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Liaoning
Benxi") for a cash consideration of approximately HK$19,456,000
(RMB17,060,000). Liaoning Benxi is principally engaged in the
maintenance and operation of wind energy plants and facilities in
Benxi City, Liaoning Province, PRC. The transaction was completed
on | December 2008. Upon the completion of the acquisition,
Liaoning Benxi was accounted for as a 55% owned subsidiary of the
Company. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company's
circular dated 14 November 2008.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

30.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The net assets acquired in the transactions, and the goodwill arising,

are as follows:

TEHER BEARE

Jiangsu Liaoning HmE
Wan Yuan Benxi Total
FA&T FET FExT

HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000

PriSHEE : Net assets acquired:
ME  BEREE Property, plant and equipment 10,315 212,144 222,459
"8 Inventories 29222 3,763 32,985
B 5 Kt e W 5K Trade and other receivables 23,799 8,287 32,086
BITERRES Bank balances and cash [ 311 1,078 2,389
85 RH AR Trade and other payables (37,698) (1,526) (39,224)
H 18 5% Other borrowings — (107,160) (107,160)
26,949 [16,586 143,535
DEIR R Minority interests (13,744) (52,464) (66,208)
B Goodwill 6,580 1,968 8,548
19,785 66,090 85,875
ATFISIEXA Satisfied by:
Be Cash 8,379 — 8,379
ENRE Consideration payable (included in
(BHEE S REMERNK) trade and other payables) 3,591 19,456 23,047
MBS QR mEE Transfer from interests in associates 7815 46,634 54,449
19,785 66,090 85,875

WEEslEMBRERAORL) ¢

Net cash inflow (outflow) arising

on acquisition:

ENRENRE Cash consideration paid 8,379 — 8,379
RITEBRE S Bank balances and cash (1,311 (1,078) (2,389)
7,068 (1,078) 5,990
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REBREMS  EHEAHELRE @R
AEHRABRINRBERAEZLE &
HENKEELH AT ABENBRME
WaREREANBREXAAREBERLE

S o

Bl

IHSERARERZEEAHREAEEE
A 5 & 3,007,000/ 7T °

WEBEBR=_ZZNE—A—BEK ' 258
HiR 2 Uk 25 15 4195,026,000/8 70 © M ERA
51815 5498,037,000/ 7T  EEERHEAE
2% UHEAMEKBR-_TZN\E—A
—HEH AEEEREIRERELEER
ZWHRERE  NIEAEHEFAEREE -

FEAZRKBEHZEAZANEMUYAEE
& A & 4,448,0007 7T °

HWEER=ZSZENEF-—RA—BxK  ~5E
HiR 2z a5 1 £211,570,0005% T © MER
[E518 15 £486,303,000/8 7T - tEEZ B RHERE
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—BREN AEEEREIREREEER
ZUEER  MIEBEHEFBAEER -

30.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For Jiangsu Wan Yuan, goodwill arose in the business combination
because the cost of the combination included a premium paid to
acquire Jiangsu Wan Yuan. The consideration paid for the
combinations effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of future market development and the assembled workforce of

Jiangsu Wan Yuan.

For Liaoning Benxi, goodwill arose in the business combination
because the cost of the combinations included a premium paid to
acquire Benxi Long Yuan. The consideration paid for the
combinations effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth and future development of

wind energy operations.

Jiangsu Wan Yuan contributed HK$3,007,000 to the Group's profit
for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet
date.

If the acquisition had been completed on | January 2008, total
Group's revenue for the period would have been HK$195,026,000,
and loss for the period would have been HK$498,037,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on | January 2008, nor is it intended to be a

projection of future results.

Liaoning Benxi contributed HK$4,448,000 to the Group’s profit for
the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet
date.

If the acquisition had been completed on | January 2008, total
Group's revenue for the period would have been HK$21 1,570,000,
and loss for the period would have been HK$486,303,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on | January 2008, nor is it intended to be a

projection of future results.
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0.4 EEF B AT ) 30.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R-TT+E+ A+ B AEBUR On |6 October 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
{E2,044,000,0007% 7 Y i e IR A R capital of Advanced Grade Holdings Limited (“Advanced Grade™) for
NA(ER]) BBETRA100% © ZBEK consideration of HK$2,044,000,000. This acquisition is accounted for
BEARIEUBEERAE  RAAR as acquisition of assets and liabilities as Advanced Grade's principal
ERNTEEERANLAREFERR assets are its interests in jointly controlled entities and associate.

EENGIE

REMEFEERIMT - The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:
FRREE
Net assets
acquired
TET
HK$'000
PIiSHEE : Net assets acquired:
ERN Property, plant and equipment 1,901
PRE &N A2 (BTEE) Interest in an associate (note |) 19,465
REREHER 2 (RE1%2) Interests in jointly controlled entities (notes | & 2) 1,777,761
Hofth, & ek (BT =E3) Other receivables (note 3) 209,064
RITHEBRRE S Bank balances and cash 44,47
EE Y EY NI Trade and other payables (8,662)
2,044,000
BAEE - Total consideration satisfied by:
AR & 3 Cash 130,000
PABE TR A (Bt 5E4) Issue of shares (note 4) 1 914,000
2,044,000
Wil sHERE : Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
ENRERE Cash consideration paid (130,000)
RITHEBRRAERS Bank balances and cash acquired 44,47 |
(85,529)
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0. EEM B AT »

Ky Note:

30.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

1. BER-FMEARZES RN ARE l.
BEEBCESMELEZAE DB E
9,227,0008 7T % 1,155,343,0005 T °

Goodwill arising on acquisition of interests in the associate and jointly
controlled entities amounted to HK$9,227,000 and HK$1,155,343,000

respectively.

2. ERBNHERZEGERE 2 ERT B 2. Included in the interests in jointly controlled entities acquired is
TERBRRPHMEBEZENEE

intangible asset represented by customer base of the entities which

331,911,000 T °

amounted to HK$331,911,000.

3. HMEUFBRE -—EBKAREGER 3. Included in the other receivables is dividend receivable from a jointly
% £.207,890,000/% 7T ° controlled entity amounting to HK$207,890,000.
4. #172,200,000,0000% & i% E {E0.17% T 4. As part of the consideration for the acquisition of Advanced Grade,

AR EBRE  ERUEERREZ
—#D o ARAZEBERZATE (RK
BEHZHNEEREE) &

1,914,000,000/ 7T °

2,200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company with par value of
HK$0.! each were issued. The fair value of the ordinary shares of the
Company, determined using the published price available at the date of
the acquisition, amounted to HK$1,914,000,000.

M.EXERIE

(a) RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H &
EEAFCITNERBEE 2 EAH
¥ #950,160,0008 L (ZTZ L F ¢
&) BRRERAEERIEED
¥ -ZPNEECEERBARS
NEHEERRAKER  HAKE
WHEB5% REME  BEAAE
BzHEZ2EHBRR -

31.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(a) At 31 December 2008, the Group was committed to capital
expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately
HK$50, 160,000 (2007: nil) relating to its investment in a sino-

foreign enterprise of the Group. The sino-foreign enterprise is

o

engaged in the manufacturing of direct-drive windmill blade in
Inner Mongolia in the PRC and is to be owned as to 55% by the
Group and will be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group

upon completion.

(o) Mo AEBAEBITNBRES (b) In addition, the Group was committed to capital expenditure
ZBARFIX#140,014,0008 T (= F
T+F &) BRAERIEES0%
ZRAEMBRALERMAERESE
TREREELARA([BREET
2] BREZEIREFHEAANREH
REREERAKESMHBRE
REABRERMIBE  BLAERE
EREETRE -

contracted but not provided for of approximately
HK$40,014,000 (2007: nil) with Beijing CASC Wanyuan
Construction Project Corporation Ltd. (“WY Construction
Project”), a fellow subsidiary, with 80% interest held by CALT, in
which WY Construction Project was engaged to provide
construction works of plants, offices, warehouses of direct-drive
windmill composite material plant and direct-drive windmill

turbine plant in Inner Mongolia, PRC.
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MNEXKIE #)

(c)

RZEZNFF+ZA=+—H K
EEAFDITNERBEEZERH
F 492,907,0008 T (ZET £ F -
&) BRRERAEERIEED
X -FHOGECEERRATHK
ERMEEK BEHRERFNHEME
MBERERRE  BASEES
51% * MEKE  BEANEE 2
FE2EHBAR -

R-ZEZNE+-A=+—H K
SERTHEMBEARAMENE %
BLEREAFELARALY
265,174,0008 L (Z 2 T+ F -
238,000,000/ 7t) ° KT8 R AL P
BASHREHRRNEERRR
Bt e

R-ZEZ+F+-_A=1+—8 ' K&
BRARERE—BPICELEZE
NP2 4922,000,000/8 7T © ZHINE
EREEFRENRELERNEER
K& - BAREEET25%HE o

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

31.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(©

At 31 December 2008, the Group was committed to capital
expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately
HK$2,907,000 (2007: nil) relating to its investment in a sino-
foreign enterprise of the Group. The sino-foreign enterprise is
engaged in provision of service and maintenance for windmill
turbine generators, blades and other components in Inner
Mongolia, PRC and is to be owned as to 51% by the Group and
will be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group upon

completion.

At 3| December 2008, the Group was committed to capital
expenditure of approximately HK$265,174,000 (2007:
HK$238,000,000) for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment by a subsidiary in the PRC. The subsidiary is engaged
in the implementation of wind energy plant and facilities power

in Inner Mongolia in the PRC.

At 3| December 2007, the Group was committed to capital
expenditure of approximately HK$22,000,000 for the
investment of one sino-foreign joint venture of the Group. The
sino-foreign joint venture is engaged in the opinion of wind
energy plant and facilities power in the Jilin province of the PRC

and is to be owned as to 25% by the Group.
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REEHERIE 32.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
FEEEBRBA The Group as lessee
REER AEBEREIITHHELEAR At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum lease
70 7T0 FE 7R 2R £ 3 R A8 F R AR 4 3B payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
W of land and buildings as set out below:
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
—ER Within one year 6,415 2,967
E_FEEFLF(ERMEBEEN) In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,238 2,344
8,653 5311
MO —MRIATFEMFRETER - ME Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two years
EREHATE - and rentals are fixed for the lease period.
FREEBHBA The Group as lessor
REER  AEEEAPFTTV T XMAR At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants
REEBEFBRMT for the following future minimum lease payments:
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 1,292 [,190
E_FEFRAF(BREMEBEELEN) In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,292 2,381
2,584 3,571
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AEERBEEMEREREERETRS
HREEAE (T8 - A2’
ENEAKBEENREEYHETEA
ZHl o ARE A BHFMK AR 25%EH
R - MEBMELRFHEN

ARBzHEMBLAIESRERF
ERCBEREERABNE T 2K
B - ARAZHFBAMBARARKEZ
FHARKENFEZEETAOLIEL
HRAZMNEH o REBEHEKEN G
BzE—BEERREZEFLATLZ

R

AU A Z B A 42 58971,0008 L (= &
T 4F 972,000 L) MAEERAS
AHHANENZEFEZEE -

MEMEBEALZXRS &

() RERN FAEEHRFEALTZERX
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B MRB R 8
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HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

33.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make

the required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to income of HK$971,000 (2007:
HK$972,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related parties:

2008 2007

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Sales of goods to associates 3,801 2,026
Interest paid to ASTF 28,314 14,387
Interest income from an associate — 125

AN AREBRAEEABEALT
WEBETREMETZRS @ JIR
Bt 5£307R o

Br Buish  AEEBEEBEALZAE
REBRBE R FE21 22 25 5 o

In addition, the Group also has transactions with respect to the
Group's acquisition of certain equity interests from related

parties as set out in note 30.

Other than the above, the Group also has balances with related

parties disclosed in notes 21,22 and 25.
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MEMEALTZRS &

(&)

b) EBEEABZHM

34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

FRATBREBABZHEMWOT : The remuneration of key management during the year was as
follows:

2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$:000
RHAE A Short-term benefits 5,705 4671
BER R A Post-employment benefits 12 36
5,717 4,707

TREBABZHFHmTMEES
BREAARREMHEBEE -

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

124 | China Energine International (Holdings) Limited FEMXEREE (%£E) FRAF



& BB 4R R B BT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

SAEHEANTZR S &6k 34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(%) BALANCES (Continued)

0 RPERABEREHERZIRS

(c) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in the

/&

AEEABERATERFERIE
%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂZfﬁUl%%ﬂE
BIEZRERETRE - It
%*$%I$%%%E¢ﬂﬁﬁ§
HZPRAETZBRAABEHE -

BREd@mBEEEIN - REETA
HBEREHEREXBAER &
SRR RAKREANFLEBHE
KME ZEERENEROEE

() AEBRBEEEBBEFES
TRITOABREHER) A
ETGERREM—RRITHE
B -ERZERTRZZH
B EERR U EERR
BUYEELEE o

(i) XEETEETEP REERS
BETEERS  EFRE
EREHAENDEZER S
BREHEMBERES EBET
EBTUER -

BEXFBREESN EFAA
e
ArEBLEmEALE -

PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (*“state-controlled entities").
In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.

Apart from the disclosure in (a) above, the Group also conducts
business with other state-controlled entities. The directors
consider those state-controlled entities are independent third

parties so far as the Group’s business with them are concerned:

(i) The Group has certain deposits placements and other
general banking facilities with certain banks, which are
stated-controlled entities in its ordinary course of business.
In view of the nature of those banking transactions, the
directors are of the opinion that separate disclosure would

not be meaningful.

(i) The Group also has certain sales and purchases transactions
with certain customers and suppliers in which the directors
are of the opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the
identity of the counterparties and accordingly whether the

transactions are with other state-controlled entities.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that
the transactions with other state-controlled entities are not

significant to the Group's operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

MEMEALTZRS &

(&)

(d)

RZZEZENF+ZA—H £45H
Az 2 E W B A B MR R
RIBHMER([MAME]) RS —
BAAEERHERRERKEAA

(TEWTD eI & - EREARH
Ry —HERREEBERHEER
HINEEDE - BERE  A5E
B 1% & 7 it A% 7N 4950,160,0007% 7T
(ZZTLF  E) - RSHFEHERN
AARBBAZSENE+ZA T
“HZEK -

RZZEZENF+ZA—RB x5 H
EERERIRITVEEEGRA K
AEBEFBEASEEBREKES
MEBRERRERERZHE
WREREECEETIR Hef
B4 552,554,0008 0 (=TT +
FE) RHFBERAAAHH
AE-_ZTZTZN\F+_HB+=ZBHzB@

RZZFEZENFRA-THLA XK
B 5 — P B A Rz D BRREWT
VAR - Wi*ﬁ#%Aﬁ
¥ AREFEARERHER
%‘@%%ﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ@%#%%
RirE - REAR AEBEAXM

A AR 7 492,907,000/ 7T (=
+F  E)  c RIFBHRELQF

WR-_ZTTNEFFT A= EIZL
I;T_(IO

34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(d)

On | December 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
with Aerospace Research Institute of Materials & Processing
Technology (“Aerospace Material”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CALT and another joint venture partner, Emergya Wind
Technologies B.V. (“EWT"), for establishing a sino-foreign
enterprise in Inner Mongolia in the PRC in relation to the
manufacturing of direct-drive windmill blade. According to the
agreement, the Group is required to invest for a registered
capital of approximately HK$50, 160,000 (2007: nil). Details of
the transaction are set out in the Company's circular dated |3
December 2008.

On | December 2008, the Group entered into a construction
contract with WY Construction Project in relation to
construction works of plants, offices, warehouses of direct-drive
windmill composite material plant and direct-drive windmill
turbine plant in Inner Mongolia in the PRC at a cash
consideration approximately of HK$52,554,000 (2007: nil).
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company's circular
dated |3 December 2008.

On 29 May 2008, the Group entered into a contract with EWT,
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary, for establishing a sino-
foreign enterprise in relation to the provision of service and
maintenance for windmill turbine generators, blades and other
components in Inner Mongolia in the PRC. According to the
contract, the Group is required to pay registered capital of
approximately HK$2,907,000 (2007: nil). Details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s circular dated |3
December 2008.
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BEEMBAT  BHEAT

REREFHESH

RZBZENF+Z_A=1T—HZFKHE
TEMBAR BMEARRARZHE
BEMWMT

AAER

Name of company

(i) P

Subsidiaries

REEIMALREE :

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:
ERRRARAR]

Advanced Grade Holdings Limited
PERAMRBEERAA

China Aerospace

Telecommunications Limited
MBEERBERAF
CASTEL Intelligent Transportation System Limited
MANEAE (B8 ERAR

China Aerospace Telecommunications
(Hong Kong) Limited

MAFERNRREERAA
CASTEL Qihua Hi-Tech Investments Limited

MERRERA]

Crownpluss International Limited

BFETARAH

Hung Nien Electronics Limited

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

35.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled

entities of the Company at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

BRAEERK
HE/ ZRBA
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

Ey
US$|

10,0007 1T
HK$10,000

[1,600,000% 7T
HK$ 11,600,000

10,0007 7
HK$10,000

8,000,000/ 7
HK$8,000,000
T

HK$ |

30,001,0005 7T
HK$30,001,000

REER AL
AR F A5E
BE% JEAE%

Percentage of equity

held by
the Company to the Group

%

attributable

IREH
Principal activities
%

—  REZR
Investment holding

100 PEEFER
Distribution of

broadband business

70 PHEERBERER
Distribution of ITS business
100 PEEBER
Distribution of

broadband business

70 REER
Investment holding

100 REZR

Investment holding

100 PHENER
Distribution of

telecommunication products
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BL.EEMBAT - BEA
REEEHEESHE @

NEEH

Name of company

EREEMEAE
Registered and operating in the PRC:

FRFERAERAA
Beijing Qihua Communications Co., Ltd#

IRERIZARARM
Beijing Energine Industry Co,,
Ltd. (previously known as
“Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation”)##

MBRER Ut R) BRA T4
CASTEL Intelligent Transportation
System (Beijing) Ltd ##

THEMAERRLERARAR
Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan
REPM Motor Co, Ltd.
(previously known as
“Hangzhou Aerospace Wanyuan
REPM Motor Application
Technology Co,, Ltd.")#

MARBRR (GLR) BRAR##

MAER(AR)BNREERAA
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power
Co, Ltd#

35.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

BRTEEREZ
mE/ ERRE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

1 239,000% 7T
US$1,239,000

AR 182520007
RMBI 18,252,000

8,000,000 7T
HK$8,000,000

A R #50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

AR 15,000,0007T
RMB 15,000,000

A K #93,800,0007T
RMB93,800,000

REgzzADL
ART LN Y |
A% JEAE%

Percentage of equity
held by attributable
the Company to the Group
% %
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TERH

Principal activities

PHEERBEREHE
Distribution of ITS business

RERRK

Investment holding

PEBERBERER
Distribution of
ITS business

HERNEHTERER
Manufacture and
distribution of
REPM products

DEETER
Distribution of

broadband business

RERGERNEERHRRKIE
Maintenance and operation of
wind energy plants

and facilities
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BL.EEMBAT  BEAT
REREFHEREEN @

35.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

BRTEERTZ RAER AL
HE/ ZRBA LN rEH
Nominal value of BE% FE{5 %
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
ACEL share capitall held by attributable TEEH

Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities

%

%

SRRRE (R BB AR 20,000,000 T — 100 DERTEHR
HK$20,000,000 Distribution of
broadband business
AEEMAS RN ERAEERD A4 AR ¥80,000,0007 - 100 HER D HEE
Inner Mongolia Energine New RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and
Energy Development Co. Ltd. distribution of wind
turbine generators
NEEMAESREEREER AR AR 50,000,007 — 95 BERA B ABREHBER
Inner Mongolia CASC - EWT RMB50,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Directwind Turbine Manufacturer Co. Ltd # of wind turbine generators
and blades
BENT
Associates
R By Rics
Registered and operating in the PRC:
RIMBEFHIMIRE (RI) ERA A 20,000,000 T — 25 PEETES
(formerly known as UK &G iB{E KT FH % HK$20,000,000 Distribution of
(RN BRAR) broadband business
AR BAERE (R ERARM 10,000,000/ — 3 HERAHENER
CASIL Telecommunications HK$10,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd## of telecommunication
products
mAREGEMN EXBRAT 8400,000% T - 49 HERHHENER
Southern Telecommunication US$8,400,000 Manufacture and distribution

Development Company Limited#

of telecommunication

products
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B.EEMEBEAE  BIEAT 35.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
REREHEEEN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)
BRTEEREZ RARREZEAL
mE/ ERRE ART S =
Nominal value of BR% FE15%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
PEER share capitall held by attributable ~ TEEK
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities
% %
THERRNEERRAR AR 3333200007 — 25 BELELRNEEMBRIE
RMB333,320,000 Maintenance and operation of
wind energy plants and
facilities
EHERENEEARAR AR ¥438,2000007C — 15 HEREEENREMER
RMB438,200,000 Maintenance and operation of
wind energy plants
and facilities
REEHER
Jointly controlled entities
R B Mg REE
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IRERREREDREEZNARATH AR 1288845207 — 49 RENEEPRERZR
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine RMB128,884,520 Manufacture of automotive
Management Systems Co, Ltd # engine management systems
and components
IRERAEAEEHRREROAY A B %1000000007C — 40 REEFTHER
Beijing Wanyuan Henniges Sealing RMB100,000,000 Manufacture of automotive
Systems Co,, Ltd# (previously known sealing products
as “Beijing Wanyuan GDX Automotive
Sealing Products Co,, Ltd")
BEMABRZLLASREREARDTY AR %1000000007C — 45 RERERMA
Nantong CASC Wanyuan Acciona RMB100,000,000 Manufacture of wind turbine

Wind Turbine Manufacture
Corporation Ltd#
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BEEMBAT  BHEAT

REEEHEEEE o)

# REPEFMzHINEERELE
# REEFMz2MELE

BRRPBRILZARS  ARERE L
ARABRND BN BRZEARETZE
B o

EXZEARR LIBKRABZEE
EMEAR HEARARAREHNE
B NREASEREREEZTER
ARRERARECEEFECEER
Do BERA  FHHEMMELR R
ERRZEN  BLAHBRILEK -

BEASFE WEBRARBERTEM

BHEER -

HE-_TTN\GF+-_A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

35.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

#  Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.
## Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of
shares held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary

shares issued by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results or assets or form a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.
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FiveYears’ Financial Summary

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FAETL FAET FAET FAETL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
HER Turnover 148,126 185,784 156,199 178,755 184,206
BB A& M (B18) Profit (loss) before taxation 6,722 (29,874) (66,931) (570521)  (488,507)
HIE (L) ER Taxation (charge) credit (2,544) 510 [,706 (1,510) (7,421)
AR (5 ) Profit (loss) for the year 4,178 (9364)  (65225)  (S72031)  (495,928)

W+=A=+—-8H

At 31 December
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FAETL FAET FHET FAETL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BELTE Total assets 357,333 352,356 417,642 2,214,648 2,165,730
& (& @4 Total liabilties (175991)  (197726)  (3253%) (642805  (889,818)
FEER Net assets 181,342 154,630 92,286 1,571,843 1,275,912
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Tel B3 : (852) 2586 1185
Fax EE : (852) 2531 0088
Email E  : energine@energine.hk
Website f3E : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
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